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Financial and Operating Highlights
HMBEREERE

Results E

Revenue A

Profit attributable to owners of ViN/NEIL7Z=DN
the Company FE(E &= F

Basic earnings per share (HK cents) &RXEARZF GE{L)
Interim and proposed final dividends —FFEA & 7235 R HA

per share (HK cents) B S GBI
Financial Position B RS AR
Net current assets MBEESFE
Total interest-bearing bank FTBRTTEERSE
borrowings
Key Financial Ratios FERKLLE
Gross profit ratio EF=E
Net profit ratio B
Return on equity & NEIEES
Current ratio BN &
Gearing ratio BEBELEO
Operating Statistics EEHE
Throughput (metric tonnes) Fa i (/N
Nanjing terminal Bt
Ningbo terminal® =R IEEEe
Weifang terminal HESTHS SR
Jetty utilisation rate®® EERE A X0
Nanjing terminal [EpaN A
Ningbo terminal®@ e
Weifang terminal HEDTRS 2R
Notes:

(1) The calculation of the gearing ratio is based on the net bank borrowings
(total bank borrowings minus cash and cash equivalents) divided by
equity attributable to owners of the Company multiplied by 100%.

) Jetty of Ningbo terminal has been closed during the year ended 31
December 2019. The business and throughout of Ningbo terminal is
conducted and recorded via public jetties.

(8)  The utilisation rate is calculated by our record of the annual actual

throughput via jetties divided by the total annual designed throughput
capacity of jetties in relation to the operating period.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EREZERER QT

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000 % Change
FET FHET FE%
255,896 238,148 7.5
62,302 83,916 (25.8)
5.10 6.87 (25.8)
1.8 4.8 (62.5%)
81,177 250,612 (67.6)
99,625 171,375 (41.9)
52.3% 52.1% 0.2
27.5% 38.5% (11.0)
5.3% 7.3% (2.0)
1.6 3.2 N/ATE A

N/ATEA N/ANE A N/ANE

1,734,000 1,515,000 14.5
365,000 397,000 (8.1)
4,357,000 5,282,000 (17.5)
32.6% 25.4% 7.2
0.0% 0.0% 0.0
86.5% 80.5% 6.0
Fi3
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual results of Dragon Crown Group Holdings
Limited (the “Group” or “Dragon Crown”) for the year ended 31
December 2021.

FORGE AHEAD WITH SOLID FOUNDATION IN FACE OF
FUTURE CHALLENGES

In 2021, the emergence and spread of new variants of the
COVID-19 pandemic were prolonging restrictions on movement
and continued to subdue global energy demand; escalating tension
in and around Ukraine and other geopolitical risks, overestimated
speed of replacement between renewable and traditional energy
have also led to fluctuation in global energy consumption and
economic growth. Despite sporadic COVID-19 cases at home
and external uncertainty, China’s economy experienced a strong
rebound in 2021 with 8.1% annual GDP growth. Likewise, despite
these strong macro headwinds, Dragon Crown was able to deliver
relatively stable financial performance, attributable to the Group’s
solid foundation and experienced management team.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021, Dragon Crown’s
revenue was HK$255.9 million (2020: HK$238.1 million) and net
profit of HK$70.4 million (2020: HK$91.7 million). The decrease
in net profit was primarily attributable to (i) the decrease in
other income of net foreign exchange gains; (i) the increase
in administrative expenses due to increased staff costs and
professional fees; and (iii) the share of loss of the joint venture in
Weifang mainly due to a provision for a pending litigation.

Dragon Crown is one of China’s leading integrated service providers
for the handling and storage of liquid petrochemical products,
operating three liquid petrochemical terminals in Nanjing, Ningbo,
and Weifang. With our comprehensive network of terminals, Dragon
Crown is able to provide services to a client base comprised of
world-class chemical enterprises, including Celanese Corporation
(NYSE: CE), a world leading producer of acetyl products.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

During the year, Dragon Crown’s Nanjing Terminal has maintained
close relationship with various clients, and is well positioned to
fulfill the 10-year service contract with Celanese Nanjing for the
continuous provision of bulk terminal, storage, and other related
thereby services for various liquid chemical products to Celanese
Nanjing, ensuring a stable revenue stream for the Group. Apart
from the contribution from Celanese, the Group also enjoys
promising future given that the liquid petrochemicals it handles are
necessary for a broad array of daily consumer products, plastics,
paints, textiles, solvents, and other petroleum-based products.

The Group has been adopting a prudent business strategy to
maintain strong performance, including actively exploring new
market opportunities while consolidating core business operations.
For years, Dragon Crown views Weifang Liquid Terminal as a long-
term profit generator. Weifang Port provides an entrance for high
Dead Weight Tonnage vessels and experiences high demand for
oil refineries and chemical production plants nearby, given that
the petroleum and chemical industries are one of the significant
economic pillars in the region.

Taking advantages of location advantage in Weifang port, the
Group seized the opening opportunities of Weifang Liquid Terminal
to foreign trade in 2018 and has been heading for the completion
of Weifang Liquid Terminal Phase lll, after successively opening
Weifang Liquid Terminal Phase I&ll. Strategically located at the
gateway to Northeast Asian economic powerhouses, Japan
and South Korea, and at a strategic junction between the Bohai
Economic Basin and Yangtze Economic Basin, the Weifang Liquid
Terminal has served as a major logistics hub for national and
foreign vessels in the Bohai Economic Basin and Northeast Asia,
and offers high-quality services to the oil refineries and chemical
production.

Upon the completion of Weifang Liquid Terminal Phase lll,
it will become Dragon Crown’s largest port, and the scale
of its operations and profitability are expected to become
significant driving force of the future development. However, the
commencement of operations at Weifang Liquid Terminal Phase
Il was postponed during the year, due to the impact of COVID-19
pandemic and generally unfavorable market conditions in 2021.
The Group is closely monitoring the progress of construction at
Phase lll, and ensures it remains on schedule.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EREZERER QT
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Dragon Crown forges ahead with determination and believes
that three liquid petrochemical terminals with its unique location
advantages and business layout, high safety standards and
advanced state-recognized technologies will continuously
consolidate the Group’s leading position within China’s liquid
petrochemical industry.

SAFETY

Dragon Crown has always put our employees’ safety first. During
the year, the Group recently enacted a range of HSE (Health,
Safety, and Environment) policies that meet national and industry
standards. We also use government monitoring departments
to monitor all of our liquid petrochemical terminals and storage
facilities, and provide regular trainings to staff members to ensure
their safety. Due to the Group’s attention to safety, Dragon Crown
saw no material safety incidents in 2021. In the future, we will
continue to make further improvements to achieve our ultimate goal
of providing safe services to our customers and safe workplaces
for our employees.

STRIKING THE RIGHT BALANCE WITH UNCERTAINTY

The pace of global vaccine rollouts, the possible emergence of
new variant of the COVID-19 pandemic, the size and effectiveness
of economic stimulus measures, persistent gap between OPEC+
output and its target levels and some geopolitical risks all represent
major uncertainty of the outlook. Despite these uncertainties, with
our professional expertise and excellent facilities and services
coupled with a good reputation within our industry and trust with
our clients including well-known international chemical enterprises
and oil refineries, Dragon Crown is positive about our industry and
business prospects in 2022.

The Group’s flagship operation, located in the Nanjing Jiangbei
New Materials High-tech Park (formerly known as Nanjing Chemical
Industry Park), has established a long-term business relationship
with the Group’s largest customer, Celanese Corporation (NYSE:
CE), a world leading producer of acetyl products. This relationship
will continue as the Nanjing terminal entered a new 10-year service
contract with a subsidiary of Celanese Corporation in 2020, which
will take effect seamlessly in 2022 and 2023 after the respective
expiration of the previous contracts.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

The Weifang Liquid Terminal, as the major logistics hub for
national and foreign vessels in the Bohai Economic Basin and
Northeast Asia, has logistical advantages in Shandong Province.,
and is able to connect with Northeast China and Northeast Asia
regions. The port mainly provides storage and handling services
of liquid petrochemical products, and its operating performance
is influenced by the fluctuation of international crude oil price and
the national policy on petrochemical storage and logistics industry.
Although the global economic environment continues to remain
uncertain, Weifang Liquid Terminal will maintain a steady operation
of its existing businesses and further capture new businesses when
the operation of Weifang Liquid Terminal Phase Ill is commenced in
2022.

Based on the current market conditions, Dragon Crown is striking
the right balance and believes that retreating at a right time is also
a way of racing with uncertainty. Dragon Crown will continue forge
ahead with determination and is timely ready to seek business
growth and other opportunities.

Lastly, on 8 October 2021, Great River Smarter Logistics (Hong
Kong) Limited (the “Offeror’), an indirect subsidiary of &R 718 2
Wi AR A 7l(Guangdong Great River Smarter Logistics Co.,
Ltd.), a joint stock company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability and the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 002930.SZ), and the Company jointly
announced that China International Capital Corporation Hong Kong
Securities Limited, on behalf of the Offeror, firmly intends, subject
to the satisfaction of certain pre-conditions, to make a voluntary
conditional general cash offer to acquire all of the issued shares
of the Company from the shareholders at the price of HK$1.28
per share (the “Offer”). We believe that the Offer will provide
shareholders an opportunity to cash out their investment in the
Company at a reasonable price without any illiquidity issue.

For the latest progress and updates in relation to the Offer, please
refer to the announcements of the Company published on the
Company’s website at http://www.dragoncrown.com and the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at http://
www.hkexnews.hk.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EREZERER QT
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Chairman’s Statement
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DIVIDENDS RS

In view of the Offer, the Board does not recommend the payment BERBY BRI EHIKEHE2021F

of final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: 12A31RIEFERRARE (20204 -
HK3.0 cents per share). An interim dividend of HK1.8 cents (2020: f%3.0/81L) - FREEMIT X HEREE
HK1.8 cents) per share was declared and paid during the year. % 1.8l (20204F = 1.871ll) °
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS £

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to TAERRESTS  BEAMSRFLAEE

express my heartfelt gratitude to all of our business partners, FIEXBEN BPFREENERR—EE
customers, and most valued shareholders for their continuous trust BMEHEAER  URHARAEEROR
and support, and to our dedicated directors, management, and BHES  EREENREBITE2021FHHM
staff for their valuable contributions in 2021. =-v-1 %

Ng Wai Man RER

Chairman EY

30 March 2022 202243 A30H
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEAE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIN Haichuan (appointed on 6 April 2022), aged 49,
graduated from Xiamen University* (EPIA2)in the PRC with a
degree of Bachelor of International Finance in 1993. He further
obtained a degree of Master of Business Administration from
China Europe International Business School in 2009 and a degree
of Doctor of Business Administration from City University of Hong
Kong in 2016. Mr. Lin is the chairman of ER 7)1 E 247D
BPFR AT (Guangdong Great River Smarter Logistics Co., Ltd.*), a
joint stock company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability,
the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 002930.S2) (the “Offeror Parent”), and also currently
holds a number of positions within the Offeror Parent group,
including, amongst others, chairman of JLE# AE HREREREAR A
7] (Jiangsu Dabaoying E-commerce Development Co., Ltd.*), B¢
RS EEREER A (Dongguan Kualyi Commercial Factoring
Co., Ltd.*) and BEH4k /)| 4 ERIBRIF AR A7 (Guangdong
Lvchuan Ecological Environment Technology Co., Ltd.*), general
manager of Offeror Parent, and director of R Z=)I|& 2%
ABR/A A (Dongguan Great River Smarter Logistics Co., Ltd*),
=Mz EZEYRERER AT (Dongguan Hongchuan Smart
Logistics Development Co., Ltd.*), EJIBEEE (B8 BRA
A) (Great River Industrial Development (Hong Kong) Limited), E5R
Z)INEBAR AT (Guangdong Hongchuan Group Co., Ltd.*), &
=Mz THEEAFR AR (Dongguan Hongchuan Chemical
Supply Chain Co., Ltd."), ERZ/IgEIRER AT (Guangdong
Hongchuan Energy Co., Ltd.*), Rexm B EFHEFREGR A
(Dongguan BaojiReal Estate Development Co., Ltd.*), BRI
NEENE g R i IRFE B PR A &) (Guangdong Hongchuan Jialejia
Car Energy Terminal Service Co., Ltd.*), BEz=m &)t EEES
FR A 7] (Dongguan Hongchuan Supply Chain Co., Ltd.*) and 3
seh =) INEe pnEeeR AR A A (Dongguan Hongchuan Jialejia
New Energy Co., Ltd.*). Within the Offeror Parent group, Mr. Lin
previously held the positions of general manager of =ML
T % 527 (Dongguan Humen Chemical Trading Co. Ltd.*) and &
=) T ESEERR A F (Dongguan Hongchuan Chemical
Supply Chain Co., Ltd.*). Mr. Lin currently is a committee member
of Dongguan CPPCC Standing Committee, the deputy chairman
of Dongguan Municipal Committee of China Democratic League

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EREZERER QT
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Directors and Senior Management

and the chairman of Dongguan Listed Companies Association.
He was previously a committee member of Maoming CPPCC
Standing Committee, the founding chairman of Dongguan
Maoming Chamber of Commerce, the deputy chairman of
Dongguan Federation of Industry and Commerce and the chairman
of Dongguan Production Safety Association. Mr. Lin was awarded
honours such as Model Worker of Guangdong Province, May
1st Labour Medal of Guangdong Province, Global Outstanding
Dongguan Merchant, Outstanding Innovative Entrepreneurs of
China, Outstanding Entrepreneur of Dongguan City and Democratic
League Advanced Individual for Poverty Alleviation.

Mr. HUANG Yuntao (appointed on 6 April 2022), aged 52,
graduated from South China University of Technology* (Z£F32 T
K E) (formerly known as South China Engineering College* (3£ T
E0%)) with a degree of Bachelor of Organic Chemical Engineering
in 1991. He further obtained a degree of Master of Business
Administration from South China University of Technology* in
2005 and a degree of Doctor of Business Administration from
City University of Hong Kong in 2016. Mr. Huang is a senior
deputy general manager of Offeror Parent, and he also currently
holds a number of positions within the Offeror Parent group,
including, amongst others, chairman of &/MZ&)IIG{L A AR
‘A a] (Changzhou Hongchuan Petrochemical Storage Co., Ltd.*);
general manager of K& 5%BA{LBR AR (Taicang Yanghong
Petrochemical Co. Ltd.*), KB ZR)IIEEAEEBLGERIFEER AR
(Taicang Hongchuan Intelligent Highway Port Integrated Service
Co., Ltd."), #RM T2 |5 E¥ii s BB PR A 7] (Suzhou Hongchuan
Smart Logistics Development Co., Ltd.*) and HFALEE A AR
‘A a] (Changshu Hongzhi Warehousing Co., Ltd.*); and director
of Offeror Parent, X &5/ ALAR AR (Taicang Yanghong
Petrochemical Co. Ltd.*), KB ZR)II'EEAEELERIEER AR
(Taicang Hongchuan Intelligent Highway Port Integrated Service
Co., Ltd."), EAZR/NALEFHEABR QTR (Changshu Hongchuan
Petrochemical Storage Co., Ltd.*), BJIEZMrERE (B8 A
FR A 7] (Hongchuan Smart Logistics Development (Hong Kong)
Co., Ltd."), I#&RIA ML ITHR AR (Jiangsu Changjiang
Petrochemical Co., Ltd.*), 8HALRE B BR AR (Changshu
Hongzhi Warehousing Co., Ltd.”), /T# & B ERBEREERA
7] (Jiangsu Jinlianhong Network Technology Co., Ltd.*), # /N

EENRSREEANE
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEAE

ZNEEWHRERAR AT (Suzhou Hongchuan Smart Logistics
Development Co., Ltd.”) and AR IIELIE M RER A A
(Changshu Hongchuan Wanchuang Warehousing and Logistics
Co., Ltd.*). Mr. Huang previously held the positions of deputy
general manager of B =T A EGR AR (Dongguan
Sanjiang Port Storage Tank Company Limited*), ER %=/ E£E A
R A &) (Guangdong Hongchuan Group Company Limited*) and
BRENEEZEREAER AT (Guangdong Hongchuan Industrial
Development Company Limited*); and senior deputy general
manager of ZR 7| B E AR AR (Guangdong Hongchuan
Industrial Development Company Limited*) within the Offeror
Parent group. Mr. Huang currently is a member of Taicang CPPCC
standing committee and the president of Taicang Port Chamber of
Commerce. Mr. Huang was awarded the honour of Suzhou City
Model Worker.

Mr. LI Xiaoli (appointed on 6 April 2022), aged 44, graduated
from Hubei University* (83EK2) with a degree of Bachelor
of Accounting in 1999. He also obtained a degree of Master
of Business Administration from Lanzhou University* (B /M A
&) in 2014. He is a certified public accountant, registered tax
agent and a qualified auditor in the PRC. Mr. Li is a senior deputy
general manager and chief financial officer of Offeror Parent,
and also currently holds a number of positions within the Offeror
Parent group, including, amongst others, general manager of
Offeror Parent’s finance centre, R=m Z) I EZ2WRERER
‘A 7] (Dongguan Hongchuan Smart Logistics Development Co.,
Ltd.") and BEMZE)IEZ2YRABRAE (Dongguan Great River
Smarter Logistics Co., Ltd*); chairman of Bz = T8 O EEAR A
7] (Dongguan Sanjiang Port Storage Tank Co., Ltd.*); and director
of Heem )Mt TRFAMR AR (Dongguan Hongchuan Chemical
Storage Co., Ltd.*), R=m AT/t TR AR A A (Dongguan
Hongyuan Chemical Storage Co., Ltd.*), JI& =T AMAIITER
A 7] (Jiangsu Changjiang Petrochemical Co., Ltd.*), and &7
JIIERIE Y RABR AR (Changshu Hongchuan Wanchuang
Warehousing and Logistics Co., Ltd.*). Within the Offeror Parent
group, Mr. Li previously held the positions of deputy manager and
general manager of the finance department of ER 7S B AR A
7] (Guangdong Hongchuan Group Co., Ltd.*).

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EREZERER QT
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. NG Wai Man (resigned on 6 April 2022), aged 65, is an
executive director, the chairman and the chief executive officer of
the Company. Mr. NG is the founder of our Group and is principally
responsible for operation of our Board and is the key decision-maker
of our Group. He is responsible for formulating the overall business
strategic development for our Group. Mr. NG has accumulated
around 33 years of management and operation experience in the
terminal and storage of liquid chemical products industry. Mr. NG
is the founder of Dragon Source Industrial Limited and its invested
entity, Ningbo Haixiang Liquid Chemical Store Co., Ltd. (the
predecessor of Ningbo Xinxiang Liquid Chemical Store Co., Ltd.
(“Ningbo Xinxiang”)), and has managed its operation since 1988. Mr.
NG was the president and legal representative of Nanjing Dragon
Crown Liquid Chemical Terminal Co., Ltd (“NJDC”) from April 2004
to 2007 responsible for overseeing strategic development and
management of resources. From December 1993 to September
2004, Mr. NG was a director of Ningbo Huaxiang Inspection Co.,
Ltd, a company which provides inspection, certification and testing
services. He served as the chairman and general manager from
October 1997 to October 2006 and legal representative from
October 1997 to October 2007 for Ningbo Free Trade Zone Dragon
Crown Chemical International Trade Company Ltd., a trading
company, responsible for strategic business management. Mr. NG
was appointed as a director of the Company on 16 July 2010 and
was re-designated as an executive director and the chairman of the
Company on 30 November 2010. Mr. NG was then appointed as the
chief executive officer of the Company on 22 September 2017.

Mr. CHONG Yat Chin (resigned on 6 April 2022), aged 60, is an
executive director of the Company. Mr. CHONG joined our Group
in 1994 and is principally responsible for business and strategic
development, major decision-making and management with major
customers. He has accumulated around 27 years of experience in
the liquid chemical products terminal and storage industry. Prior
to joining our Group, Mr. CHONG worked for Mitsui & Company
(Hong Kong) Limited, an international conglomerate engaging in
various businesses, including worldwide logistics and financing,
development of infrastructure, for over seven years. He was in
the chemicals division and undertook business support centered
around petrochemical products chain for logistics and distribution.
He was also responsible for developing strategic partnerships
and customer relations. Mr. CHONG graduated from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1986 with a Degree of Bachelor of
Business Administration. Mr. CHONG was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 30 November 2010.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEAE

Ms. CHAN Wan Ming (resigned on 6 April 2022), aged 56, is an
executive director of the Company. Ms. CHAN is responsible for
our Group’s day-to-day management, administration as well as
human resources management. She joined our Group in 1988 and
has accumulated around 33 years of management and operation
experience in the terminal and storage of liquid chemical products
industry. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. CHAN worked for Wai Hing
Company, a trading company, from November 1986 to July 1988
responsible for arrangements in trading of chemicals. Ms. CHAN was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 30 November
2010.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. FENG Jianping, aged 68, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 29 June 2018. Mr.
FENG is also a member of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of our Board. Mr. FENG
was the executive director and vice president of Sinopec Shanghai
Petrochemical Company Limited (formerly known as Shanghai
Petrochemical Complex), a company listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(collectively the “Main Board”), from January 1996 to April 2004.
Mr. FENG was also the general manager and secretary of party
committee of the Guangzhou branch of China Petroleum &
Chemical Corporation, a company listed on the Main Board,
from April 2004 to July 2013. He also served as the group leader
of the third supervisory group in China Petroleum & Chemical
Corporation from June 2013 to December 2014. Mr. FENG has
considerable experience in operations management. He graduated
from Shanghai Industry University in 1983 majoring in business
management and is a senior economist.

Mr. HOU Xiaoming, aged 59, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company with on 1 July 2019. Mr.
HOU is also a member of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of our Board. Mr. HOU
served various positions in Sinopec Shanghai Gaogiao Company
(formerly named as Shanghai Gaogiao Petrochemical Company), a
subsidiary of China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation (a company
the H shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong, London and
New York stock exchanges and the A shares of which are listed on
the Shanghai stock exchange), from July 1985 until his resignation
in September 2017 with his last positions as deputy secretary of
the party committee, director and general manager. Mr. HOU has
extensive experience in the petrochemical industry and corporate

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EREZERER QT
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Directors and Senior Management

management. He graduated from East China University of Science
and Technology (“ECUST”) (formerly named as East China Institute
of Chemical Technology) in 1985 with a bachelor degree in
engineering specialising in petroleum refining. He obtained a master
degree in chemical engineering in 2000 and a doctorate degree
in chemical technology in 2016, both from ECUST. He was also
the author or one of the coauthors of a few publications on the
petrochemical industry.

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen, aged 54, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 30 November 2010.
Mr. LAU is also chairman of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of our Board. Mr. LAU served
as the financial controller of a subsidiary of NWS Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board for over 3 years and had worked
with PricewaterhouseCoopers for over 5 years. Mr. LAU served as a
non-executive director of ZMFY Automobile Glass Services Limited, a
company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market Board of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM”) from September 2013 to December 2014. Mr.
LAU graduated from Oregon State University with a bachelor degree
of science in Business Administration in 1989. Mr. LAU is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
as well as a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. LAU has been serving as the chief financial officer
and company secretary of Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board, since April 2003. Mr. LAU has served as an
independent non-executive director of China Qinfa Group Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board since June 2009. Mr. Lau served
as an independent non-executive director of SDM Group Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the GEM, from September 2014 to June
2020. Mr. LAU has also served as an independent non-executive
director of CTEH INC., a company listed on the Main Board, from May
2018 to July 2021.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. WOO Yiu Chung, aged 47, is the chief financial officer and
company secretary of our Group. Mr. WOO has joined our Group
since January 2020. Mr. WOO has over 24 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and finance. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
WOO had over 6 years of working experience in an international firm
of certified public accountants and over 13 years of experience in
key financial position in Hong Kong and overseas listed companies.
Mr. WOO graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a Bachelor’s Degree of Arts (Honours) in Accountancy. Mr.
WOQOO is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.

Mr. YANG Aiming, aged 60, is the chairman of the board and
the legal representative of NJDC and Weifang Sime Darby Liguid
Terminal Co., Ltd. (“WSDL”). Mr. YANG has joined our Group since
December 2017, principally responsible for the monitoring function
of the board of directors of NJDC and WSDL. Mr. YANG graduated
from East China University of Science and Technology in 1984,
majoring in petroleum refining engineering and he joined Sinopec
Yangzi Petrochemical Company Limited, engaging in technical
management duties in the same year. Since 2001, he successively
served as the deputy head of HSE department, the deputy
factory director of refinery, the head of production and operational
management department, the marketing manager, the logistics
manager, the head of production technology and operational
dispatch department, the party committee secretary of quality
inspection center of Sinopec Yangzi Petrochemical Company
Limited, the vice chairman of labor union of BASF-YPC Company
Limited, etc. Mr. YANG was awarded the title of senior engineer in
1997.

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EREZERER QT
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. GU Jianxin, aged 55, is the general manager of NJDC. Mr. GU
has joined our Group since December 2010 as the deputy general
manager of NJDC, in charge of HSE department, engineering
department and administrative and human resources department
and responsible for the coordination and contact with the industry
authorities of customs, state inspection, frontier defense, maritime
affairs, port, safety supervision, environmental protection, fire
safety, park management committee, etc. and has been promoted
as the general manager of NJDC since July 2017, mainly
responsible for the overall operation management of NJDC. Mr. GU
has 32 years of working experience in the liquid chemical terminal
and storage industry and has extensive experience in areas such as
project construction, production operation, market development,
government coordination and corporate management. Mr. GU
graduated from Southeast University in Nanjing. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. GU worked in Nanjing Port Co., Ltd. from August
1989 to January 2004, successively served as technician, secretary
to general manager, manager of engineering and technology
department, manager of development department and assistant
to general manager. He served as the deputy general manager of
Qiltanking Nanjing Co., Ltd. from January 2004 to November 2009.

Mr. LAU Chi Ming, Sammy, aged 64, is the deputy general
manager of NJDC. Mr. LAU is principally responsible for our
Group’s business and new project development of petrochemical
terminal in Nanjing. Mr. LAU has accumulated around 33 years
of management and operation experience in the terminal and
storage of liquid chemical products industry. Mr. LAU was an
engineer of ExxonMobil Hong Kong Limited from 1988 to 2004
and he assumed management roles in HSE, logistics, operations
and maintenance. Mr. LAU graduated from The University of Hong
Kong with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Engineering in 1979.
Mr. LAU was elected as a Graduate of the Institution of Engineers,
Australia on 10 January 1985 and has been included in the list of
competent persons for Class 2-inspection and certification of LPG
compound and cylinder stores by Electrical & Mechanical Services
Department, Government of Hong Kong since 6 November 1996.
He joined our Group in April 2005 as a project manager.
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Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEAE

Mr. XIANG Xiaochu, aged 66, is the general manager of Ningbo
Ningxiang Liquid Chemicals Terminal Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo Ningxiang”)
and Ningbo Xinxiang. Mr. XIANG has joined our Group since
November 1995. Mr. XIANG is principally responsible for our
Group’s overall operational management in Ningbo. Mr. XIANG
has accumulated around 29 years of management and operation
experience of which around 26 years are in the terminal and
storage of liquid chemical products industry. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. XIANG served as deputy director the factory, division
deputy chief of Human Resource and Security and an office
administrator in Ningbo No.2 Pharmaceutical Factory of Zhejiang
Province from February 1988 to October 1992. During the period
from November 1992 to September 1995, Mr. XIANG served as an
office administrator handling selection and recruitment of new staff,
finance management and observing compliance of HSE policies of
Zhejiang Chemicals Factory (Yongxin Company). Mr. XIANG has
served as a deputy director and director of tank field, business
manager and general manager assistant in Ningbo Ningxiang
and Ningbo Xinxiang since October 1995. Mr. XIANG completed
administration management course of Self-Study Examination of
the Higher Education of Zhejiang Province in October 1990.

Mr. JI Hongchen, aged 58, is the general manager of WSDL.
Mr. JI has joined WSDL since December 2020, responsible for the
overall operational management of the company. Mr. JI graduated
from Fushun Petroleum Institute in 1985, majoring in petroleum
storage and transportation. In the same year, he joined Sinopec
Yangzi Petrochemical Co., Ltd. Since 1997, he has successively
served as the storage and transportation plant (chief engineer,
deputy plant director, plant director), logistics manager, production
and operation management department director of Sinopec Yangzi
Petrochemical Co., Ltd., deputy chief engineer of Sinopec Yangzi
Petrochemical Co., Ltd., general manager of Huaian Qingjiang
Petrochemical Co., Ltd., and deputy general manager in charge of
storage and transportation department of Zhejiang Petrochemical
Co., Ltd. Mr. JI graduated from Nanjing Industrial Park in 2003 with
a master degree in chemical process machinery. He was awarded
the title of senior engineer in 1997.

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EREZERER QT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Dragon Crown is one of China’s leading integrated service providers
that specialized in the storage and handling of liquid petrochemical
products, operating three terminals located in Nanjing, Ningbo,
and Weifang. Strategically situated in China’s major petrochemical
industry hubs, the Group has set up jetties and tank farms (together,
the “Terminals”) along the coastline to capture increasing demand
from the petroleum and chemical industries. Dragon Crown offers
customers a range of high quality and comprehensive liquid
petrochemical terminal and storage services through its own jetties,
storage tanks, and dedicated pipelines.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the throughput volume
of liquid petrochemical products at the Group’s Nanjing, Ningbo,
and Weifang terminals reached 1,734,000 metric tonnes, 365,000
metric tonnes, and 4,357,000 metric tonnes, respectively (2020:
1,515,000 metric tonnes, 397,000 metric tonnes, and 5,282,000
metric tonnes, respectively), with a combined throughput volume of
6,456,000 metric tonnes (2020: 7,194,000 metric tonnes).

The following table provides an overview of the Terminals as at 31
December 2021:

Terminals Nanjing
R [
Number of tanks RS 32
Storage capacity (m?) FRAZ (LK) 210,000
Number of berths =IIE= 3
Berthing capacity (dwt) JERLEE J) (FEWE) 45,000**
Jetty designed throughput WSSERRAT B 2 (ANE)

capacity (metric tonnes) 4,000,000

Jetty of Ningbo terminal has been closed during the year ended 31

December 2019. The business and throughput of Ningbo terminal is
conducted and recorded via public jetties.

* Comprises three berths with capacity of 20,000 dwt, 20,000 dwt and

5,000 dwt, respectively.

***  Comprises two berths with capacity of 30,000 dwt and 30,000 dwt,

respectively.
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Ningbo Weifang Total

B WS et

12 63 107

29,000 497,000 736,000

1* 2 6
3,000* 60,000***

100,000 4,000,000 8,100,000
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB WD T

The Group’s main source of revenue and profits come from its
flagship terminal, located in the Nanjing Jiangbei New Materials
High-tech Park (formerly known as Nanjing Chemical Industry Park).
The Group’s largest customer, Celanese Corporation (NYSE: CE), a
world leading producer of acetyl products, also located in the same
high-tech park, contributed HK$227.8 million (2020: HK$205.0
million) to the Group’s revenue, equivalent to 89.0% (2020: 86.1%)
of total revenue during the year. Dragon Crown’s Nanjing business
operations continue to contribute stable revenue derived from
established, long-term customer relationships. Additionally, during
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nanjing terminal entered
a new 10-year service contract, which will take effect seamlessly
in 2022 and 2023 after the respective expiration of the previous
contracts, with Celanese (Nanjing) Chemical Company Limited
(“Celanese Nanjing”), a subsidiary of Celanese Corporation and
a world class producer of acetic acid, vinyl acetate monomer,
acetic anhydride, and other chemical products, for the continuous
provision of bulk terminal, storage, and other related services for
various liquid chemical products to Celanese Nanjing in Nanjing,
creating a new and stable revenue stream to the Group.

The Group regards its Weifang Liquid Terminal as a significant
development milestone and one of the key drivers to the Group’s
business expansion since the commencement of Weifang Liquid
Terminal’s Phase | and Il Projects. Weifang Liquid Terminal is
located in the Bohai Economic Basin and Northeast Asia which
is a major logistics hub for national and foreign vessels. The
port provides effective storage and handling services of liquid
petrochemical products for local refineries.

The completion progress of Weifang Liquid Terminal Phase Il is
being continuously refined and optimized in accordance with the
Group’s business needs to boost its comprehensive capabilities
and enhance its influence in the region. The Group will closely
monitor the completion progress of Phase Il in 2022 and will press
ahead at full steam with the commencement of operation of a
world-class leading terminal.

Weifang Liquid Terminal is the primary driving force for Dragon
Crown’s longer-term growth. With the expansion strategy of
Weifang Liquid Terminal, the group believe the operating scale
and profitability of the terminal will further increase and will
consolidate the leading position of Dragon Crown in China’s liquid
petrochemical industry.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EREZERER QT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Due to the resurgence of the COVID-19, the oil price fluctuations,
the tension between China and US and the military conflict in and
around Ukraine, the global economy still faced multiple uncertainties
and downside risks. Despite all these uncertainties, Dragon Crown
remained focused on the Group ‘s business stability with our
visionary management team and the solid client relationships. The
Group will continue to deepen the development of its businesses in
order to capture the next economic rebound.

As at 31 December 2021, Dragon Crown is in a strong
financial position, with total assets of HK$1,398.9 million (2020:
HK$1,434.1 million) and total equity of HK$1,231.4 million (2020:
HK$1,191.9 million). As at 31 December 2021, the Group has
HK179.0 million (2020: HK$288.4 million) cash on hand and in a
net cash position. This healthy financial position will help to ensure
the Group’s long-term sustainability.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The global economic recovery remains uncertain due to the
outbreak of new variant of the COVID-19 pandemic. Nonetheless,
as vaccination coverage has increased, more business activities
gradually start returning to normal due to the policy of “coexisting
with COVID-19” promotion, and the world generally expects that
new variant of the COVID-19 pandemic would not cause strong
negative economic impact as previous COVID-19 waves. In the
meantime, the Ukraine-Russia tensions will disrupt oil supplies,
which will lead surges of oil price. Despite all these uncertainties,
demand for oil and other liquid petrochemical products is expected
to remain stable in the coming year.

As Weifang Liquid Terminal Phase | and Il commenced operation,
the completion progress of Weifang Liquid Terminal Phase Il will
continue to refine and optimize and consider to commence in 2022,
it is expected the market share in domestic and international markets
will grow further in view of expansion of the storage capacity of the
Group. With the geographical and logistic advantages of Weifang
Port, the opening of Weifang Liquid Terminal Phase Il will allow the
Group to capture regional business and develop business in the
Northeast China and Northeast Asia regions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB WD T

Dragon Crown is one of the storage and integrated terminal service
providers in China and Asia that specialized in the handling and
storage of liquid petrochemicals. With the long-term relationship
with Celanese Corporation and further development of Weifang
Liquid Terminal, the Group is positive about the prospect of the
industry and layout of its business and will continue to pay close
attention to the industry profile and make flexible counter-measures
to tackle the challenging economic environment.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s revenue
increased by 7.5% from HK$238.1 million in 2020 to HK$255.9
million. The increase was mainly due to the increase in revenue in
respect of methanol and acetic acid.

Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2021, gross profit increased
by 7.9% from HK$124.0 million in 2020 to HK$133.9 million. The
increase was mainly due to the increase in revenue as mentioned
above. The gross profit ratio increased by 0.2%, from 52.1% in
2020 to 52.3% for the year.

Other income

Other income decreased HK$6.7 million from HK$31.0 million in
2020 to 24.3 million, which was mainly due to the decrease in net
foreign exchange gains recorded for the year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 29.4% from HK$37.6 million
in 2020 to HK$48.6 million. The increase was mainly due to the
higher staff costs and professional fees incurred for the project
in relation to voluntary general cash offer as announced by the
Company on 8 October 2021.

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EREZERER QT

BARTEDEDMEEERLEERE
tmBEERFETFORFIEAEBRRSER
Z— e BERENEHARNRAEEH
R AT Bt MR — P ERE - K
SEBEHTENSREBHR @ LASEE
BRI TEBR - WIRMEAE N EHHE
I SAFES T im P B VR EIRIR o

M RECRE

YA

HE2021F12A31HIEFE + AEBRA
20204 2 2.38 1{EE TG IN7.5% £ 2.559
BT » ZIGINE 2 AR B s SR B 2 IR
AIEANFTER

EF

BE2021F12H31BIEFE - EFIH2020
F21.240B T IN7.9% E1.33918 %5
TL o ZIEMEBZ AN Ll AR INET
B o EFEH20205F 8952.1%IEMN0.2%E
REFH52.3% °

HUA

H AW A 20204 23,1008 B TR 4670
BABILE2,4308 8T R ETEHNF
RIS B SN U 25 7 B R D FITEK ©

TR

THRAZ B20204F 23,760& 7 T8 N
29.4%%4,8608 T c ZIEMEZH AR
B IRAE IR AR RR2021F10A8HE
MEREEHRESENEEMEEANEESE
FETEL



Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance costs

Finance costs for the year decreased to HK$3.6 million from
HK$6.2 million in 2020, mainly attributable to the decrease in
interest rates and the repayment of certain bank borrowings by the
Group during the year.

Share of profit and loss of an associate

The associate in Tianjin was going through the liquidation process
since 2016 and the loss of HK$0.2 million for the year (2020:
HK$0.3 million) was due to the administrative expenses in relation
to the liquidation.

Share of profits and losses of joint ventures

There was no significant change in the share of profits of the joint
ventures in Ningbo compared with that of 2020. The results of the
joint venture in Weifang recorded loss for the year mainly due to a
provision for a pending litigation. Accordingly, the Group recorded
share of losses of its joint ventures of HK$4.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021, as compared to share of profits of its
joint ventures of HK$12.6 million in 2020.

Tax expense

The tax expense for the year decreased slightly to HK$31.1 million
from HK$31.7 million in 2020. The decrease was due to the
decrease in profit before tax for the year.

Investment in Weifang Sime Darby Liquid Terminal Co., Ltd.
(“WSDL")

The acquisition of 50% equity interest in WSDL at a consideration
of RMB60.9 million was completed on 23 May 2016 and WSDL
becomes a joint venture of the Group since then. Afterwards, the
Group injected RMB225.0 million in capital into WSDL in proportion
to its shareholding interest in WSDL up to 31 December 2021.

The Group also provided shareholder’s loans to WSDL. As at 31
December 2021, WSDL was indebted to the Group in an aggregate
amount of RMB143.1 million and USD9.4 million.

EEE WD T

B AR

REFHFE KA HR20205 2 62088 TTH
LE3B0EBTT - EETHARNHE T EA
SEFNEES TRITEEME -

FEfE — B e R B 2 s RER

T N R E2016FRETEERRF -
FREIB208 B 7T (20204 : 3088 7T) /I
RRE BB EMNITE RS TS -

FEIERE R 5 MEE

EBI2020F MALL - EIHEIRE E R EM R T
WEERE L  FRARTEEDEEER
BEE  TZHRR—BRERAFREDR
& At - AEBREZE2021F12H31H
IEFESSEREESEEEB4308%
TC - MR2020F RIS G EG A& & ¥
F1,2608 B TT ©

PIAR X

FRFRIBR S 5120204 23,1708 78 TTEMM
WA ES 108 IT o R TIERF R
FRATE AR D FT 8L ©

RAEGHREZRIELDBHEAAR A A
(TwsDL)) 8% &

AR (E6,0908 A R EWSDLAI50% M
B M201655 23H 7R - WSDLA A
AAEENEEDRE - & - HE2021F
12A818 » REEIZR AR WSDLHFF AR
L B MWSDLEE2.25018 AR o

AEBEREREBRERXRTWSDL » 1

2021512 A31H » WSDLA AR &£ E 458
B1A31EARENII0EZETT »

Annual Report 2021 FERE



« 4

x~ V 'iW

« <

erl;;L

Management Discussion and Analysis

BB WD T

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The Group has received approximately HK$281.1 million net
proceeds, after deducting underwriting fees and other related
expenses, from listing of the Company’s shares in 2011.

These net proceeds were applied up to 31 December 2021 in
accordance with the proposed applications set out in the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Company’s
prospectus dated 30 May 2011 (the “Prospectus”) and the
Company’s announcements dated 6 February 2013 headed
“Change of use of proceeds”, dated 20 December 2017 headed
“Change in use of proceeds from the global offering”, and dated 22
December 2017 headed “Clarification announcement”, as follows:

EHAREREREZRAR

AEBAARRRBNN2011F LTESE
MBRBHE R R EMERRAS R ZAER
THFFA2.8111BBTT °

BIEARQFHEA2011FE5 5308 2 B
ER([BRER]) [REEIRMERIEBEA
B —ERAARIAER2013F2 H6 AR
[SFEAEIERRZ] - AEA2017F12A
0REARIBE2NEEMSHREREI R
A A2017F12A22B B ABBERE] 2
NEMEBCEBRE - ZEMERIEFE
HZE2021F12A31ALERMT ¢

Net proceeds (HK$ million)
FSFIEFE(BEEB T

Available Utilised Unutilised
aE A 2EA KRENA
Construction of second R FOEIEIR L IE T
cryogenic ethylene tank 133.1 133.1 -
Construction of our third jetty RSB 3RRHEEA 46.6 46.6 -
Investing into existing projects ~ REMNIRAIER 15.0 15.0 -
Investing into future business BERRREBEERS
development opportunities 5.0 - 5.0
Construction of nine general ZROlE— M R
purpose storage tanks 33.3 33.3 -
General working capital —REEES 48.1 48.1 -
281.1 276.1 5.0

The Group held the unutilised net proceeds in short-term deposits
or time deposits with banks in Hong Kong as at 31 December
2021. In respect of the unutilised net proceeds reserved for
the purpose of investing into future business development
opportunities, the Group has been actively looking for suitable
investment opportunities and it is currently estimated that the
unutilised net proceeds would be fully utilised by 31 December
2023.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EREZERER QT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND GEARING

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total bank borrowings
amounted to HK$99.6 million (2020: HK$171.4 million), all of which
are Hong Kong dollar bank borrowings. The Group’s cash and
cash equivalents amounted to HK$179.0 million (2020: HK$288.4
million). The Group maintained net cash position at 31 December
2021 and 2020. The gearing structure was as follows:

b2 N ey

Net cash

Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZNA Rl A A E(E##ER

Gearing ratio EEBELE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s current assets and current
liabilities amounted to HK$223.6 million (2020: HK$364.1 million)
and HK$142.4 million (2020: HK$113.5 million), respectively. As at
31 December 2021, the Group’s current ratio was 1.6 (2020: 3.2).

The Group strives to efficiently use its financial resources and
adopts a prudent financial policy in order to maintain a healthy
capital ratio and support its business expansion requirements.

DEBT MATURITY PROFILE

The maturity profile of the Group’s bank borrowings is set out below:

Repayable: FEE TR
Within one year 1R
In the second year P2

Note: All bank borrowings as at 31 December 2021 are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars.
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FTERT THET
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2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT
99,625 71,750
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FOREIGN CURRENCY AND INTEREST RATE RISKS

The Group’s cash and bank balances were primarily denominated
in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. Its operating cash inflows and
outflows were primarily denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars. During the year, the Group did not have any material foreign
exchange exposure and had not used any financial instruments for
hedging purpose.

All bank borrowings of the Group were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, the interest rates of these bank borrowings are calculated
in Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate plus a particular percentage.
The Group will closely monitor the interest rate movements and
regularly review its banking facilities so as to mitigate the expected
interest rate risk.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

CONDITIONAL VOLUNTARY GENERAL CASH OFFER

Reference is made to (1) the announcement jointly published
by Great River Smarter Logistics (Hong Kong) Limited (the
“Offeror’), an indirect subsidiary of ERZE)IIZZ2WRBRHDBR A
8] (Guangdong Great River Smarter Logistics Co., Ltd.*), a joint
stock company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and
the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 002930.SZ), and the Company on 8 October
2021 (the “doint Announcement”); and (2) the composite offer
and response document jointly published by the Offeror and the
Company on 9 March 2022 (the “Composite Document”). Unless
the context otherwise requires or otherwise defined, capitalized
terms used in this section and the sections headed “COMPULSORY
ACQUISITION” and “EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD”
shall have the same meaning as those defined in the Composite
Document.

As detailed in the Composite Document, a conditional voluntary
general cash offer has been made by CICC on behalf of the Offeror
to acquire all of the issued Shares from the Shareholders at the
Offer Price of HK$1.28 per Offer Share in accordance with the
terms and conditions set out in the Composite Document (the
“Offer”).

* for identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For the latest progress and updates in relation to the Offer, please
refer to the announcements of the Company published on the
Company’s website at http://www.dragoncrown.com and the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at http://
www.hkexnews.hk.

COMPULSORY ACQUISITION

As the Offeror has received valid acceptances in respect of not
less than 90% of the Offer Shares and not less than 90% of the
Disinterested Shares pursuant to the Offer, the Offeror will privatise
the Company by exercising its right to compulsorily acquire those
Offer Shares not already owned or acquired by the Offeror under
the Offer (the “Remaining Offer Shares”) on the same terms as the
Offer (i.e. at the Offer Price of HK$1.28 per Share).

Pursuant to Section 88 of the Cayman Companies Act, the process
of compulsory acquisition may only commence four months after
the date of the Composite Document, 9 March 2022, being the
date the Offer was made. Accordingly, the Offeror will issue notices
in relation to the compulsory acquisition of the Remaining Offer
Shares pursuant to Section 88 of the Cayman Companies Act (the
“Compulsory Acquisition Notices”) to the Shareholders holding
the Remaining Offer Shares on Monday, 11 July 2022. Once the
Compulsory Acquisition Notices are despatched, the Offeror will
be entitled and bound to acquire the Remaining Offer Shares on
the same terms as the Offer (i.e. at the Offer Price of HK$1.28 per
Share) on the expiration of one month from the date on which the
Compulsory Acquisition Notices are given, unless the Grand Court
of the Cayman Islands (the “Grand Court”) makes an order to the
contrary upon the application of any dissenting Shareholder holding
Remaining Offer Shares.

A further announcement will be made on or around 11 July 2022
to inform the Shareholders about the despatch of the Compulsory
Acquisition Notices and the details of the compulsory acquisition,
including the timetable on completion of the compulsory acquisition,
withdrawal of listing of the Shares and payment for the Remaining
Offer Shares.

An application will be made to the Stock Exchange for the
withdrawal of listing of the Shares from the Stock Exchange under
Rule 6.15(1) of the Listing Rules, which is currently expected to
be in August 2022. The Company will continue the trading of the
Shares listed on the Stock Exchange up to and until the date of
withdrawal of listing of the Shares from the Stock Exchange.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In consideration that the Offer became unconditional in all respects
on 17 March 2022 and has closed on 6 April 2022, the Board has
approved the appointments of Mr. Lin Haichuan, Mr. Huang Yuntao
and Mr. Li Xiaoli as executive Directors, all with effect from 6 April
2022. Each of Mr. Ng Wai Man, Mr. Chong Yat Chin and Ms. Chan
Wan Ming has tendered their resignations as executive Directors
with effect from 6 April 2022.

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “CONDITIONAL
VOLUNTARY GENERAL CASH OFFER?” relating to the Offer and
in this report, there is no significant event after 31 December 2021
and up to the date of this report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 332 full
time employees (2020: 339). The Group provides competitive
remuneration package to retain its employees including salaries,
discretionary bonus, medical insurance, other allowance and
benefits in kind as well as mandatory provident fund schemes for
employees in Hong Kong and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes for employees in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EREZERER QT
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of the Company is pleased to present this Corporate
Governance Report in the Annual Report for the year ended 31
December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders, enhance
corporate value, formulate its business strategies and policies, and
enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (version up to 31 December 2021)
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
as the basis of the Company’s corporate governance practices.

The Company has in place a corporate governance framework
and has established a set of policies and procedures based on the
CG Code. Such policies and procedures provide the infrastructure
for enhancing the Board’s ability to implement governance and
exercise proper oversight on business conduct and affairs of the
Company.

In the opinion of the directors, throughout the year, the Company
has complied with all the code provisions as set out in the CG
Code, except for code provision A.2.1 (which has been re-
numbered as CG code provision C.2.1 since 1 January 2022)
which stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure compliance with the CG Code.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the
directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company has also established written guidelines (the
“Employees Written Guidelines”) no less exacting terms than the
Model Code for securities transactions by employees who are likely
to be in possession of inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.

THE BOARD

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees
the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance and
takes decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.
The Board should regularly review the contribution required from

a director to perform his responsibilities to the Company, and
whether the director is spending sufficient time performing them.

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EREZERER QT
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises 6 directors, consisting of 3
executive directors and 3 independent non-executive directors.

The Board currently comprises the following directors:

Executive directors:

Mr. LIN Haichuan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(Appointed on 6 April 2022)

Mr. HUANG Yuntao (Appointed on 6 April 2022)

Mr. LI Xiaoli (Appointed on 6 April 2022)

Mr. NG Wai Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(Resigned on 6 April 2022)

Mr. CHONG Yat Chin (Resigned on 6 April 2022)

Ms. CHAN Wan Ming (Resigned on 6 April 2022)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Mr. FENG Jianping
Mr. HOU Xiaoming

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time
pursuant to the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive
directors are expressly identified in all corporate communications
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out
under “Directors and Senior Management” section in this annual
report. None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are held by Mr. NG Wai Man during the year ended 31 December
2021 and by Mr. LIN Haichuan from 6 April 2022.

The Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer in the same person is beneficial to the
business prospects and management and provides the Company
with strong and consistent leadership and allows for effective and
efficient planning and implementation of business decisions and
strategies.
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The Board considers that the current structure of vesting the roles
of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person
will not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Board and the management of the Company. The Board shall
review its structure from time to time to ensure appropriate and
timely action to meet changing circumstances.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors
representing one-third of the Board with at least one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experience and independent
judgment to the Board. Through active participation at Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests, all independent non-executive directors
have made various contributions to the effective direction of the
Company.

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen has served the Board for more than nine years.
Notwithstanding his length of tenure, in view of his professionalism,
extensive business experience and familiarity with the Company’s
affairs, the Board is of the opinion that he possesses the required
character, integrity and experience to ensure his independence in
order to objectively scrutinise the Company’s performance.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines as set out in the
Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles
of Association. The Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing Board composition, monitoring the appointment of
directors and assessing the independence of independent non-
executive directors.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are
appointed for a specific term of one year, subject to renewal after
the expiry of the then current term.

All the directors of the Company are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings. Under the
Articles of Association of the Company, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the directors for the time being, or if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. The Company’s Articles of
Association also provides that all directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment. The retiring directors shall be
eligible for re-election. Any director appointed by the Board shall
not be taken into account in determining which particular directors
or number of directors who are to retire by rotation.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr.
LIN Haichuan, Mr. HUANG Yuntao, Mr. LI Xiaoli, Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
and Mr. HOU Xiaoming shall retire by rotation and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election pursuant to the Company’s Articles
of Association.
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RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company. The Board has delegated to the Chief Executive
Officer, and through him, to the senior management the authority
and responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of
the Group.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place.

All directors have carried out their duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

DELEGATION OF MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the
Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those that
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations are followed. Each director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at
the Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the
senior management. The delegated functions and responsibilities
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
aforesaid officers.
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Corporate Governance Report

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and
changes in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

Each newly appointed director receives formal and comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

All directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company regularly circulates training materials or
briefings to all directors in respect of the updates on, among other
things, the Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) or other useful guidelines,
the Companies Ordinance and financial or accounting standards
which may be of the interest to the directors and benefit for them
to discharge their duties. Training session for directors will also be
arranged where necessary.

In addition, the Company provides and circulates the directors
with monthly and regular updates relating to the Group’s business,
financial position and business environment, which aims to ensure
compliance and to enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

All directors have provided to the Company with their training
records on a regular basis, and such records have been maintained
by the Company for accurate and comprehensive record keeping.
During the year, all directors (Mr. NG Wai Man, Mr. CHONG Yat
Chin, Ms. CHAN Wan Ming, Mr. LAU Sik Yuen, Mr. FENG Jianping
and Mr. HOU Xiaoming) have complied with the code provisions
in relation to continuous professional development through
attendance of seminars on corporate governance, regulatory
development and other relevant topics.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with
their authority and duties. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon
request.

The list of the chairman and members of each Board committee is
set out under “Corporate Information” on page 179 of this annual
report.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises four members, namely, Mr.
LAU Sik Yuen (chairman), Mr. FENG Jianping, Mr. HOU Xiaoming
and Mr. NG Wai Man (replaced by Mr. LIN Haichuan on 6 April
2022), the majority of which are independent non-executive
directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of directors, and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors
concerning Board diversity as set out in the Company’s Board
Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee would discuss and
agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for

adoption.
Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EREZERER QT
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In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships,
the Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s
relevant criteria as set out in the Director Nomination Policy that
are necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve
Board diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation
to the Board.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year under review
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
the independence of the independent non-executive directors,
and to consider the qualifications of the retiring directors standing
for election at the Annual General Meeting and to consider and
recommend to the Board on the appointment of independent
non-executive director. The Nomination Committee considered
an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is
maintained.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises four members, namely,
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (chairman), Mr. FENG Jianping, Mr. HOU
Xiaoming and Mr. NG Wai Man (replaced by Mr. LIN Haichuan on
6 April 2022), the majority of which are independent non-executive
directors.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of all directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference
to the performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year under
review to review and make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration policy and the remuneration packages of all directors
and senior management.
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Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band are
set out in note 11 to the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (chairman), Mr. FENG Jianping
and Mr. HOU Xiaoming. None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external
auditor.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

° To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the external auditor
before submission to the Board

° To review the relationship with the external auditor by
reference to the work performed by the auditor, its fees and
terms of engagement, and make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditor

° To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control systems and risk
management system and associated procedures

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year under
review to review the interim and annual financial results and reports
and significant issues on the financial reporting, operational and
compliance controls, the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit function, appointment of
external auditor and engagement of non-audit services and relevant
scope of works and, connected transactions and arrangements for
employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties.
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The Audit Committee also met the external auditor twice without
the presence of the executive directors.

The Group’s accounting principles and practices and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets
out the approach to achieve diversity of the Board and is available
on the website of the Company. The Company recognizes
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and sees
increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee
will review annually the structure, size and composition of the
Board and where appropriate, make recommendations on changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy
and to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile.
In relation to reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the
Nomination Committee is committed to diversity at all levels and
will consider a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional and industry
experience.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth
and is also committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection
practices at all levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately
structured so that a diverse range of candidates are considered.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement
the Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress
made towards achieving those objectives.

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that the Board
is sufficiently diverse and the Board has not set any measurable
objectives.
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The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority
for selection and appointment of directors to the Nomination
Committee of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets
out the selection criteria and process and the Board succession
planning considerations in relation to nomination and appointment
of directors of the Company and aims to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the Board and
appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing
the suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a
proposed candidate, including but not limited to the following:

° Reputation for integrity

° Accomplishment and experience

° Quialifications

° Compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

° Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest

° Independence

° Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the
discretion to nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for
the selection and appointment of new directors and re-election of
directors at general meetings. During the year ended 31 December
2021, there was no change in the composition of the Board.
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The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 (which has been renumbered as CG code
provision A.2.1 since 1 January 2022) of the CG Code.

During the year, the Board had reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
Written Employee Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and the general meeting of the Company held
during the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out in the table
below:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

R/ EERE

Nomination Remuneration Audit Annual General
Name of Board Board Committee  Committee =~ Committee Meeting
EEpg =g REZRE HFMZEEE EHZEE RREFAE
Mr. Ng Wai Man 7/7 11 11 - 11
RER%HE
Mr. Chong Yat Chin 77 - - - 11
HRELE
Ms. Chan Wan Ming 77 - - - 11
R=lvrt
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen 777 1/1 1/1 2/2 11
BHREE
Mr. Feng Jianping 77 1/1 11 2/2 11
BT EE
Mr. Hou Xiaoming 77 1/1 11 2/2 1/1
FREALE
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Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the independent non-executive directors without the
presence of other directors during the year.

Independent non-executive directors have attended general
meetings to gain and develop a balanced understanding of the
view of shareholders.

Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to directors in advance.

Notice of regular Board meetings is served to all directors at least
14 days before the meeting. For other Board meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before
each Board meeting to keep directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each
director also have separate and independent access to the senior
management where necessary.

The secretary of the meeting is responsible for taking and keeping
minutes of all Board meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated
to directors for comment within a reasonable time after each
meeting and final versions are open for directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or
a director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association
contain provisions requiring directors to abstain from voting and not
to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such directors or any of their associates have a material
interest.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness to safeguard interests of shareholders, customers,
employees and the Group’s assets. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and establishing and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems. The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading
the management and overseeing their design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems
have been developed with the following principles, features and
processes:

—
—

) ldentify significant risks in the Group’s operation environment;

(2)  Evaluate the impacts of those risks on the Group’s business
and the likelihood of occurrence;

(8) Determine the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks; and

(4)  Perform ongoing monitoring, review and revise the strategies
and processes in case of any significant change of situation,
ensuring effective communication to the Audit Committee and
the Board on all findings and the effectiveness of the systems
regularly.

The Internal Audit Department as well as the external professional
firm engaged by the Company for providing the internal audit
function are responsible for performing independent review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems. The Internal Audit Department with the support
of the external professional firm examined key issues in relation to
the accounting practices and all material controls and provided
its findings and recommendations for improvement to the Audit
Committee.
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The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings, reviewed the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems, including
major financial, operational and compliance controls, as well as risk
management functions, for the year ended 31 December 2021,
and considered that such systems are effective and adequate.
The annual review also covered the resources, staff qualifications
and experiences, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, financial reporting and internal audit functions, which
also considered to be adequate. In addition, the management
has confirmed to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information according to internal procedures and policy so as to
ensure inside information remains confidential until the disclosure of
such information is appropriately approved, and the dissemination
of such information is efficiently and consistently made.

The Board assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and
significant event that may impact the share price and/or trading
volume and decides whether the relevant information is considered
inside information and needs to be disclosed as soon as reasonably
practicable pursuant to Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the Listing
Rules and the Inside Information Provisions under Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance. The Group has strictly prohibited
unauthorized use of confidential or inside information and has
established and implemented procedures for responding to external
enquiries about the Group’s affairs, so that only the executive
directors and company secretary are authorized to communicate
with parties outside the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The Management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
the reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 65 to 71.

Where appropriate, a statement from the Audit Committee
explaining its recommendation regarding the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditor and the
reasons why the Board has taken a different view from that of the
Audit Committee.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s external auditor, Ernst & Young, in
respect of audit services and non-audit services is set out below:

Service Category

RAEER
Audit Services ZE RS
— Annual audit —FEET
— Special audit —FrRlEET
Non-audit Services IERZERTE

— Independent letter on continuing connected
transactions EE VA

— Review of interim results

— Provisional services rendered in connection
with the joint announcement and composite
document

— BB IR

— Taxation services

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. CHUNG Sau Ming (“Ms. CHUNG”) has been appointed as the
Company’s company secretary on 1 January 2020. On 30 March
2022, Ms. CHUNG has resigned and Mr. WOO Yiu Chung was
appointed as the company secretary to take up the duties of the
company secretary with effect from 30 March 2022.

All directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary on corporate governance and board practices
and matters.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Ms. CHUNG has

undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder’s interests and rights, separate resolution
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings, including the election of individual director.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after
each general meeting.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING
BY SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
an extraordinary general meeting shall be called by the Board
on the written requisition of any one or more shareholders of the
Company, provided that such shareholder(s) held at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. Such meeting shall be called for the
transaction of any business specified in the written requisition to the
Board or the Secretary of the Company; and shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL
MEETINGS

There are no statutory provisions granting the right to shareholders
to put forward or move new resolutions at general meetings under
the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the Articles of Association
of the Company. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting following the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.
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PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Unit No. 3, 18th Floor
Convention Plaza, Office Tower
No. 1 Harbour Road
Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Board of Directors/
Company Secretary)
Fax: 2587 1338

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement,
or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address, except for
the registered office of the Company, and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
will enable shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decisions.
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The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or,
in their absence, other members of the respective committees
and, where applicable, the chairman of the independent Board
committee, are available to answer questions at shareholder
meetings.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at http://www.dragoncrown.com, where up-to-date
information and updates on the Company’s business operations
and developments, financial information and other information are
available for public access.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles of Association. An up to date version of
the Company’s Articles of Association is also available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

POLICIES RELATING TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication
Policy to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure
its effectiveness.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of
dividends. Depending on the financial conditions of the Company
and the Group and the conditions and factors as set out in the
Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared
by the Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a
financial year will be subject to the shareholders’ approval. Details
of the Dividend Policy have been disclosed on pages 48 to 64 of
the Directors’ Report of this annual report.
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The Board has pleasure in presenting its report together with the
audited financial statements of Dragon Crown Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the financial statements. There was no significant change
in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the
Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 72 to 75.

An interim dividend of HK1.8 cents (2020: HK1.8 cents) per share
was paid on 12 October 2021.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy with effect from 20
December 2018. Subject to the relevant laws and the Articles of
Association of the Company, the Company, through a general
meeting, may declare dividends in any currency but no dividend
shall be declared in excess of the amount recommended by the
Board.

Dividends may be declared and paid out of profit, or from any
reserve set aside from profits, share premium account or any
other fund or account which can be authorised for this purpose in
accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and
the Articles of Association of the Company.

The Company’s ability to declare and pay dividends will depend
on the availability of dividends received from its subsidiaries,
including its subsidiaries in the PRC. For the purpose of declaration
of dividend, the amount which the Company and its subsidiaries
can legally distribute by way of dividend is reference to the profits
as reflected in their PRC statutory financial statements prepared in
accordance with PRC generally accepted accounting practices.
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Declaration of dividend is subject to the discretion of the Board,
taking into consideration of, among others, the following factors:

° operations and earnings;

° business development;

° capital requirements and surplus;

° market conditions and general financial conditions;

. contractual restrictions (if any); and

° any other factors that the Board consider appropriate.

Subject to the availability of the Company’s cash and distributable
reserves, investment requirements, cashflows and working capital
requirements and the approval of the shareholders of the Company,
where dividend is being declared in any particular financial year,
the total amount of payment shall be approximately 40% of any
net distributable profits derived from ordinary activities during such
given financial year.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend
(2020: HK3.0 cents per share) for the year ended 31 December
2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the year and a discussion
on the Group’s future business development and the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group are provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 17 to 26 which form part of the
Directors’ Report. An analysis of the Group’s performance during
the year using financial key performance indicators is provided
in the Financial and Operating Highlights on page 2 which forms
part of the Directors’ Report but not part of the audited financial
statements. No important event affecting the Group has occurred
since the end of the financial year under review.
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The Group is committed to supporting environmental sustainability.
Being an integrated service provider that specialized in the handling
and storage of liquid petrochemical products in the PRC, the Group
is subject to various environmental laws and regulations set by the
PRC national, provincial and municipal governments. These include
regulations on air and noise pollutions and petrochemical storage.

During the year under review, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact on the
operations of the Group.

The Group recognises that our employees, customers and
business partners are the keys to our sustainable development. The
Group is committed to establishing a close and caring relationship
with our employees, providing quality services to our customers
and enhancing cooperation with our business partners.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group fulfils its social responsibilities of protecting the
environment by undertaking to promote social environmental
protection in our business routines and activities. We give due
consideration to environmental protection and conservation and
incorporates environmentally friendly practices and measures into
our daily course of business.

In accordance with Rule 13.91 (version up to 31 December 2021)
of the Listing Rules, the Company will publish an Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report within five months after the
end of the financial year in compliance with the provisions set out in
the ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2021 are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
There was no movement in the share capital of the Company

during the year. Please refer to note 26 to the financial statements
for details.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands amounted to HK$545.4 million (2020:
HK$622.3 million). In accordance with the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands, dividend may be paid out of the amount of
HK$553.9 million (2020: HK$553.9 million) of the Company’s share
premium account subject to a solvency test and the provisions of
the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the total revenue to the Group’s top five customers
and largest customer accounted for 98.7% and 89.0% of the total
revenue for the year. The cost of services provided by the Group’s
top five suppliers and largest supplier accounted for 30.3% and
9.8% of the total cost of services for the year.

None of the directors or any of their associates or any shareholder
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had beneficial
interests in the Group’s top five suppliers or customers referred to
above.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company who were in office during the year
and up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. LIN Haichuan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(Appointed on 6 April 2022)

Mr. HUANG Yuntao (Appointed on 6 April 2022)

Mr. LI Xiaoli (Appointed on 6 April 2022)

Mr. NG Wai Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(Resigned on 6 April 2022)

Mr. CHONG Yat Chin (Resigned on 6 April 2022)

Ms. CHAN Wan Ming (Resigned on 6 April 2022)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen

Mr. FENG Jianping

Mr. HOU Xiaoming

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. HOU Xiaoming and Mr. LAU Sik Yuen are subject
to retirement by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In addition, pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles of Association
of the Company, Mr. LIN Haichuan, Mr. HUANG Yuntao and Mr. LI
Xiaoli are subject to re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offers themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of its independent non-executive directors and at the
date of this report still considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. LIN Haichuan, Mr. HUANG Yuntao and Mr. LI XiaoLi
has not entered into a service contract with the Company.

Mr. HOU Xiaoming has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of one year effective from 1 July 2019
and will continue thereafter for successive one-year terms until
terminated by either party thereto by giving to the other not less
than one month’s written notice.

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen has renewed his service contract with the
Company for a term of one year effective from 1 December 2011
and will continue thereafter for successive one-year terms until
terminated by either party thereto by giving to the other not less
than one month’s written notice.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, the director
is entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which he or she may sustain or incur in or about
the execution of his or her duties. To the extent provided that this
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to any of the directors.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and
costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against directors of companies in the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report and note 32 to the financial statements, no director
nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of
the directors and the chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

(i) Interests and short positions in the shares of the Company
Personal
Name of directors interests
BEEpg BARS
Mr. Ng Wai Man (“Mr. NG”) RERLE(REE]) 125,354,000 (L)
125,354,000 (S)
Mr. Chong Yat Chin (‘Mr. CHONG") ~ #B &4 ([HEA]) 16,712,000 (L)
16,712,000 (S)
Ms. Chan Wan Ming B=Srt 184,000
Notes:
1. The letter “L” denotes a person’s “long position” in such shares and

the letter “S” denotes a person’s “short position” in such shares.

2. Mr. NG was the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of
Lirun Limited (“Lirun”) and Sure Port Investments Limited (“Sure Port”)
and therefore was deemed to be interested in a total of 767,988,000
shares of the Company held by Lirun and Sure Port.
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Approximate
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interests Total of the Company

EERDARE

BRITRE

ARER @5t BHEI
767,988,000(L)% 893,342,000 (L) 73.18% (L)
767,988,000(S)? 893,342,000 (S)® 73.18% (S)
- 16,712,000 (L) 1.36% (L)
16,712,000 (S)* 1.36% (S)

- 184,000 0.01%
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(i)

Name of directors corporation Capacity
EEHE LB ER 514

Mr. NG Lirun Beneficial owner
REHE b EmEA A

Mr. NG Sure Port Beneficial owner
REE BB EnEA A

On 8 October 2021, each of Mr. NG, Lirun and Sure Port has signed
irrevocable undertakings in favour of Great River Smarter Logistics
(Hong Kong) Limited and Guangdong Great River Smarter Logistics
Co., Ltd, pursuant to which Mr. NG has irrevocably undertaken to
accept the Offer (as defined in the Composite Document dated 9
March 2022) in respect of an aggregate number of 893,342,000
shares of the Company held directly and indirectly by him
(representing approximately 73.18% of the issued share capital of the
Company).

On 8 October 2021, Mr. CHONG has signed an irrevocable
undertaking in favour of Great River Smarter Logistics (Hong Kong)
Limited and Guangdong Great River Smarter Logistics Co., Ltd,
pursuant to which Mr. CHONG has irrevocably undertaken to accept
the Offer (as defined in the Composite Document dated 9 March
2022) in respect of an aggregate number of 16,712,000 shares of
the Company (representing approximately 1.36% of the issued share
capital of the Company).

Long positions in the shares of associated corporations of the
Company

Name of associated

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the

directors nor chief executives of the Company had any interests or

short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of

the Company or any of its associated corporations.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2021, so far as was known to the directors of
the Company, the persons or corporations (other than directors
or chief executives of the Company) who had interests and short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

Number of shares or
underlying shares

TERRZEENRAR

R2021F12A31H * AR ESFTA -
TOATICEE (W IERRRESELE BT
BAB)RARRRZBRDSAABRMND T HES
AR IRIEE S M B E G A £ 3361478 T
BEZELMRAENG AQR 2w ok
BT

Approximate
percentage of
existing issued
share capital of

A N

Name of shareholders Capacity
RERERB g4

Lirun Beneficial owner®
WA EniEaAQ

Mr. Ng Dan Ching
RAFEE

Great River Smarter Logistics
(Hong Kong) Limited ®
ZNEEMR (EB)BRARO

Guangdong Great River Smarter
Logistics Co., Ltd®
BRZIEZMRBNBRAT O

BERZNEBERAF®

REm IRt _RERKRE

AREEERAR)W

o> ol

REMARBREAEEEEE

EREEG®

Beneficial owner

BEafEEA

Beneficial owner

BEmBEBEA

Controlled corporation

AL H)EE

Controlled corporation
REHhEE

Controlled corporation
REHhEE

Controlled corporation
REHhEE
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held in the Company the Company
RARA B R G HERATRBEEER
HEERGHE TRABHNEDL
751,488,000 (L) 61.56% (L)
751,488,000 (S) 61.56% (S)
117,040,000 (L) 9.59% (L)
117,040,000 (S) 9.59% (S)
1,060,842,000 (L) 86.91% (L)
1,060,842,000 (L) 86.91% (L)
1,060,842,000 (L) 86.91% (L)
1,060,842,000 (L) 86.91% (L)
1,060,842,000 (L) 86.91% (L)
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Number of shares or
underlying shares

Name of shareholders Capacity held in the Company
RAA B RS
IR ERB 514 ARG A

Emaei)eFEFXREERMEE  Controlled corporation 1,060,842,000 (L)

ESERE

Approximate
percentage of
existing issued
share capital of
the Company
HAEARREEER
TRAMYES X

86.91% (L)

(BRaE) HAEH)EE

REoREREBEBERARG

Controlled corporation
AR

1,060,842,000 (L) 86.91% (L)

LIN Haichuan® Controlled corporation 1,060,842,000 (L) 86.91% (L)

MO @ REEhEE
PAN Junling® Controlled corporation 1,060,842,000 (L) 86.91% (L)

BERKO HAEH)EE

+

BEINTMENEEYRERBRAR®  Controlled corporation
2 EE

1,060,842,000 (L) 86.91% (L)

Notes: Btz

A.

1.

The letter “L” denotes a person’s “long position” in such shares and

the letter “S” denotes a person’s “short position” in such shares.

[LIEZATRZERDOIFR] - fls)
EZATRZERDHDRR] -

2. Mr. NG was the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of Lirun ST A RO RTRA Y BXES
and therefore was deemed to be interested in a total of 751,488,000 A EHEEABRDEEEALTIZAL
shares of the Company held by Lirun. 751,488,0000% B (D Fh A #ERS o

3. On 8 October 2021, Great River Smarter Logistics (Hong Kong) Mo0214E10880 @ B EYin(EE) B

Limited and Guangdong Great River Smarter Logistics Co., Ltd has
received irrevocable undertakings (“Irrevocable Undertakings”) from
certain shareholders of the Company (including each of Mr. Ng Wai
Man, Lirun and Sure Port) pursuant to which those shareholders have
irrevocably undertaken to accept the Offer (as defined in the Composite
Document dated 9 March 2022) in respect of an aggregate number
of 1,060,842,000 shares of the Company (representing approximately
86.91% of the issued share capital of the Company).
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4. Great River Smarter Logistics (Hong Kong) Limited is a controlled
corporation of each of #MT RN EEMRERER AR, ERE)
E£EAEMRAA], Mr. LIN Haichuan, REm LMt —SFEREESE
rEERER), Remait) | BIFEXREAGBREE (BRER), ®
ZeRIZEREBARAF and REMARBNBEEEESEEERE
B, Pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, each of them is deemed to be
interested in an aggregate number of 1,060,842,000 shares of the
Company (representing approximately 86.91% of the issued share
capital of the Company) under the Irrevocable Undertakings.

5. Ms. PAN Junling is the spouse of Mr. LIN Haichuan. Pursuant to Part
XV of the SFO, she is deemed to be also interested in an aggregate
number of 1,060,842,000 shares of the Company (representing
approximately 86.91% of the issued share capital of the Company)
under the Irrevocable Undertakings.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the directors of
the Company were not aware of any other persons (other than the
directors of the Company whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures” above) who held any
interests or short positions in the shares, or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 23 May 2011 (the “Share
Option Scheme”) to provide incentives to eligible participants
(including employees, executives or officers, directors including
non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors,
advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries) for their contribution to the
long term growth of the Group and to enable the Company to
attract and retain high calibre employees. During the year, no share
options were granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company
under the Share Option Scheme. The Share Option Scheme had
expired on 22 May 2021.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of the executive directors (collectively the “Covenantors”) have
entered into a deed of non-competition in favour of the Company
(on behalf of itself and the Group) dated 23 May 2011 (the “Deed”).
Pursuant to the Deed, each of the Covenantors shall procure that
their respective associates shall not directly or indirectly engage in
any business in competition with the existing business activity of
the Group. Relevant information on the Deed was disclosed in the
Prospectus in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders”.

The Company has received confirmations from the Covenantors
of their compliance with the terms of the Deed. The Covenantors
declared that they have fully complied with the Deed for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The independent non-executive
directors have reviewed on the confirmations from the Covenantors
and concluded that the Deed has been complied with and has
been effectively enforced.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
The Group conducted the following non-exempt continuing
I connected transactions during the year.
The table below sets out the annual caps and the actual transaction
amounts of the non-exempt continuing transactions in 2021:
} Connected transactions Connected person
BERS BEAL
(A) 2018 Ningbo Storage Ningbo Free Trade Zone Dragon
‘ Agreement (Renewed) Crown Chemical International
Trade Company Ltd.
‘ (“Ningbo FTZ Dragon Crown”)
2018F B TF % (BT H) ERRTEENM TERESERAF
(IERRBEEA])
(B)  Ningbo Port Loading, Discharging and  Ningbo Zhen Hai Gang Bu Company
Storage Agreement (Renewed) Limited (“Ningbo Zhenhai”)
BERARHLER RS (EEH) EREEERAERAR ([EKEE])
"J (A) 2018 Ningbo Storage Agreement (Renewed)
On 28 December 2018, Ningbo Ningxiang and Ningbo
FTZ Dragon Crown entered into the 2018 Ningbo Storage
r Agreement (Renewed), pursuant to which Ningbo Ningxiang
agreed to provide Ningbo FTZ Dragon Crown with terminal
and storage services at the Group’s terminal in Ningbo. The
term of the 2018 Ningbo Storage Agreement (Renewed)
‘ is for the period of three years from 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2021.
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Annual cap Actual transaction amount
FELR ERZ 5%
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OE OE
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(ARBTT) (FAm) AEERTR) (FET)

10,568 12,730 - -

9,800 11,806 7,014 8,449
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Ningbo FTZ Dragon Crown is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Dragon Crown Investments Limited which in turn is owned as
to 98% by Mr. NG, a director and a controlling shareholder
and as to 2% by Mr. CHONG, a director. It is principally
engaged in trading of chemicals. According to the Listing
Rules, Ningbo FTZ Dragon Crown is an associate of Mr. NG
and thus a connected person. As Ningbo FTZ Dragon Crown
is a connected person of the Company, the transactions
contemplated under the 2018 Ningbo Storage Agreement
(Renewed) constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Rule 14A.31 of the Listing Rules.

The fees for the services provided are principally determined
by () the quantity of the liquid chemical products handled by
Ningbo Ningxiang; and (i) the period for the storage of the
liquid chemical products at the terminal. The price will be
negotiated and agreed between both parties with reference to
the market price and the management will take into account
the price range charged by other service providers for the
same services within the port. This is to ensure that the terms
offered by Ningbo FTZ Dragon Crown to Ningbo Ningxiang
are no less favorable than those offered by other independent
third parties in the ordinary course of business.

Ningbo Port Loading, Discharging and Storage Agreement
(Renewed)

On 29 December 2020, Ningbo Ningxiang and Ningbo
Zhenhai entered into the Ningbo Port Loading, Discharging
and Storage Agreement (Renewed), pursuant to which
Ningbo Zhenhai agreed to provide Ningbo Ningxiang with
loading, discharging and storage services at the terminal in
Ningbo. The term of the Ningbo Port Loading, Discharging
and Storage Agreement (Renewed) is for the period from 1
January 2021 to 31 December 2021.
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Ningbo Zhenhai is a substantial shareholder of Ningbo
Ningxiang and Ningbo Xinxiang, owning 40% equity interests
in Ningbo Ningxiang and Ningbo Xinxiang. Each of Ningbo
Ningxiang and Ningbo Xinxiang is deemed to be a subsidiary
of the Company under the Listing Rules by virtue of being
a subsidiary undertaking as defined in schedule 1 to the
Companies Ordinance (Cap 622). Ningbo Zhenhai, being a
substantial shareholder of subsidiaries of the Company, is
considered as a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

As Ningbo Zhenhai is a connected person of the Company,
the transactions contemplated under the Ningbo Port
Loading, Discharging and Storage Agreement (Renewed)
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Rule 14A.31 of the Listing Rules.

The fees payable by the Group to Ningbo Zhenhai for the
services provided are principally determined by (i) the quantity
of the liquid chemical products handled and stored by Ningbo
Zhenhai; and (ii) the period for the storage of the liquid
chemical products at the terminal in Ningbo. The price will be
negotiated and agreed between both parties with reference
to the market price. The Group considered the following
factors in order of priority before the determination of the
fees payable by the Group to Ningbo Zhenhai under the
Ningbo Port Loading, Discharging and Storage Agreement
(Renewed):

i) Similar to Ningbo Zhenhai, Ningbo Ningxiang also
provides liquid chemical terminal and storage services
to its customers at the Group’s terminal in Ningbo.
Ningbo Ningxiang may purchase liquid chemical
terminal and storage service from third party suppliers
of liquid chemical terminal and storage services to
meet the demand from its customers from time to
time. The Group would ensure that the price payable
by the Group to Ningbo Zhenhai under the Ningbo
Port Loading, Discharging and Storage Agreement
(Renewed) is more favorable than the price offered by
Ningbo Ningxiang to its customers for the provision of
liquid chemical terminal and storage services with an
acceptable profit margin.
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ii) By obtaining quotations from not less than two
Independent Third Parties suppliers of liquid chemical
terminal and storage services at the terminals in Ningbo
in the ordinary and usual course of business, the Group
would ensure that the price payable by the Group
to Ningbo Zhenhai under the Ningbo Port Loading,
Discharging and Storage Agreement (Renewed) is no
less favorable than the market prices.

Since the Group is under no obligation to enter into any actual
transaction under the Ningbo Port Loading, Discharging
and Storage Agreement (Renewed) unless it is satisfied
that the price and terms of the proposed transactions
after considering the above factors, the Directors believe
that such procedures can ensure that the transactions
contemplated by the Ningbo Port Loading, Discharging and
Storage Agreement (Renewed) will be conducted on normal
commercial terms (including the prices) or on terms no less
favorable than those offered by Independent Third Parties.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have,
for the purpose of Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed
the continuing connected transactions set out above and have
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions have
been entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary and usual course
of its business; (ii) on normal commercial terms or better; and (i)
according to the agreement governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders
as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has not qualified its report in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above
by the Group. A copy of the auditor’s letter confirming the matters
set out under Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules has been provided
by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in note 32
to the financial statements.

The Company confirms that in relation to the related party
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2021, it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this report, the Company has
not maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

Prior to the issue of this report, 10,399,009 Shares, representing
approximately 0.85% of the entire issued share capital of the
Company, are held by the public (as defined in the Listing Rules).
Accordingly, the minimum public float requirement of 25% as
specified by the Stock Exchange under Rule 8.08(1)(d) of the
Listing Rules is not satisfied.

AUDITOR
Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for the reappointment as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

By order of the Board

Ng Wai Man
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

EY:

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DRAGON CROWN GROUP
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dragon
Crown Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 72 to 177, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the
matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial staterments
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BREEITEE(E
How our audit addressed H BT MR
Key audit matter the key audit matter BRETEE I EETSEE

Impairment assessment of in

vestments in joint ventures

REELFIREHBETIE

As at 31 December 2021, the | Our audit procedures to assess R2021F12A31H » | HAFERWSDL
Group recorded investments in | the recoverable amount of the EEEHENEAED | HRENTRES
joint ventures of HK$606,150,000, | investment in WSDL included ¥ H3%E606,150,000 | ZEHEAEZFEIE
which represented approximately | the following: B HEEERLE | UTRE:

43% of the total assets of the

ER43% - stAEE

Group. Included therein is the | ® obtaining and reviewing the R—EEEMNLL | ¢« EREEEMH
Group’s investment in a material valuation report prepared by TrEAEIREE EEEEMN
joint venture, namely Weifang the external valuer engaged B RIEEER A A Gh B & (B Bl
Sime Darby Liquid Terminal by the Group; (fWSDLJ)) K% & REMNEER
Co., Ltd. (“WSDL?), with carrying 20211231 BKA &
amount of HK$579,124,000 as EA579,124,0004%
at 31 December 2021, which | e assessing the extemal valuer's T IEEEBBEEL | o FELANIEE
represented approximately 41% qualification, experience and 41% ° FRRWSDLE R FEERE - &
of the total assets of the Group. expertise and considering its BREEE  BUIERIE B B ¥
As WSDL was loss-making competence, objectivity and EFRWSDLAIRETE & WERE
during the year, an impairment independence; and EREDR B BEE
indicator was noted on the KRB R
Group’s investment in WSDL.

* involving our intemal valuation o BREMHA
Significant estimate is involved specialist to assist us in the BIEHEERGFAEE BEEERD
to determine the recoverable assessment of the valuation FAWSDLIE & K] 4 [2] Bh B P9 & 1 BT
amount of the investment in methodologies applied and S8 RMRBEHR ERNEES
WSDL, which reflects market the key assumptions and MmN  EEEER A R kB
conditions at the end of the estimates adopted in the [ B2 {F G 2B {4 (B Bl FTER A /O el 4
reporting period. Management of valuation, having considered PWSDLE R B #1T{h Ra& M fhE
the Group engaged an external the intemal and extemal factors e NZ<E-CIN:2
valuer to perform the valuation of that might have caused an BYURENE
the investment in WSDL. impaiment indlication. EONARIPS LS

During the year, no impairment
was recognised against the
Group’s investment in WSDL.

The accounting policies and
disclosures in relation to the
investments in joint ventures are
included in notes 3 and 19.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B R

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee

in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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B B R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chau Suet Fung, Dilys.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

30 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

2= A 12 3L
:ﬁff/‘.lh? (=) Eﬁﬁ%‘%
Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A1 HILFE

REVENUE

Cost of services provided

Gross profit

Other income
Administrative expenses
Finance costs
Share of profits and losses of:
Associate
Joint ventures

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE

ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY (HK cents)

Basic and diluted

Notes
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@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
255,896 238,148
(122,046) (114,104)
133,850 124,044
24,305 30,959
(48,626) (37,576)
(3,553) (6,242)
(189) (304)
(4,308) 12,585
101,479 123,466
(31,086) (31,724)
70,393 91,742
62,302 83,916
8,091 7,826
70,393 91,742
5.10 6.87




Consolidated Statement of Comprehenswe Income
mEZHEWER

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 31 HILFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Other comprehensive income that may be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods:

Share of other comprehensive income of an
associate

Share of other comprehensive income
of joint ventures

Exchange differences related to foreign
operations

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

FREF

Hit 2w s

RIREMEAAET D EER
A EAD 2 E R

FTE [HE A NCIE g e

BRBINETRE 5

FAZEREAE

AT AL RIS
ZAN/NCIE 2PN
IRt 2R

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TR
70,393 91,742
598 1,067
17,126 30,314
17,998 32,973
35,722 64,344
106,115 156,086
96,330 145,448
9,785 10,638
106,115 156,086

Annual Report 2021 FERE



NV 'yN
« 4

« 4

erl;;L

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBI R

31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Gooadwill

Investment in an associate
Investments in joint ventures
Other receivables

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Accounts and bills receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other payables, accruals and contract
liabilities

Interest-bearing bank borrowings
and lease liabilities

Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

FRBEE

E NI G
EREEE

mE
R—EEE R AINIE
REERERNRE

H At FE M IR
ERETIAEE

FRBEERE

REEE

7R

FEURA BRI

BN - RE MEME
YRR
RelReEHEY

RBEERE

REBRE
HAMENFIR - ERtE
REEHAE
AHRRITREE
rHERE
AN

mRBRERE

RBEEFE

REERRBAE

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T

Notes

B =E

15
16
17
18
19
21
25

20

21
22

23

24

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
449,231 469,867
46,925 48,776
1,210 1,210
18,398 17,983
606,150 525,089
47,339 336
6,063 6,784
1,175,316 1,070,045
3,789 3,175
31,419 31,593
9,331 40,907
179,024 288,400
223,563 364,075
23,994 19,856
112,509 85,922
5,883 7,685
142,386 113,463
81,177 250,612
1,256,493 1,320,657




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mE BRI R

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FERT T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBERS
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ATRIRITEE
and lease liabilities FHEEEE 24 - 100,455
Contract liabilities AHEE 23 20,472 23,667
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIBEE 25 4,627 4,615
Total non-current liabilities JEmEBERE 25,099 128,737
NET ASSETS BEEFRE 1,231,394 1,191,920
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to owners of the ARATHEE AEEER
Company
Share capital & 26 122,063 122,063
Reserves i 28 1,057,680 1,020,020
1,179,743 1,142,083
Non-controlling interests FEiERER 51,651 49,837
TOTAL EQUITY DB 1,231,394 1,191,920
Ng Wai Man Chong Yat Chin
RER HEE
Director Director
EE EE

Annual Report 2021 FERE a
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Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A1 HILFE

4
a
A
A
-
A
A

At 1 danuary 2021 RUAEIR1R

Proft o the year Eiad

Ottercompehensie ncome for ey, ERERATENE
NG

&
Share of ot compreensiencome ofjit - ERASAEEH
Ventres e
Exchenge ifeences reted o foregn Gl
opeaons Ei2E

‘ Shareofofher comprehensiencome o an e~
‘ as0cite 3l

Tota comprehensive income o the year e
Appropriaton o stattoryresene AiEh
Fiel 2020 dhicend WERERE
et 2021 iicend WHERERE

" Dhicend decled tonon-contoling merests S JEER 2 ke
At 31 December 2021 RnERANA

Note
e

Attributable to owners of the Company

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FTRRARE
Exchange Non-

Share Share  Reserve Capital ~ fluctuation ~ Retained controling Total
capital ~ premium’* funds™  reserve*  reserve* profits* Total  interests equity
EfRd
k5 ROEE  RREET  AER i REER B ffhEE  EaeE
HKSOO  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSOO  HKSO0D  HKSO00
Thn Tin #n in in An An THn Thn

(note 28] (note 28(j)  (note 28fi)
(Festong)  (KSsbos)  (Hiseomgi)
12208 553008 16,054 0407 5683 168 1,420 087 1191920
62302 62302 8,091 7039
5% - 598 - 58
11,126 - 17126 - 11,126
16,304 - 16,304 1,64 17,99
34028 62302 9,330 o785 106,115
813 (693) 60) Ll -
(36619 (36619 - (36619
Qo)) - (21.9m)
- - (8,051 (6,051)
12208 553908 17,667 0407 g1 0% 1179748 51651 1,281,304

a Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited BEfI&EEIZRAR AT



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equi

AL
AN =] *Eé@ib
Year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12 A1 BILFE

Attioutable fo owners of the Company

RAARBARK
Exchange Non-
Share Share  Resene Captll ~ fuctuafon ~ Refained contoling Totd
captdl  premium’ finds™  reseng’ resene’ profts* Totd nerests equy
EifD
Br RfRE  BEEY  AMER BE RERT gt FARER SR
Notg 00 HSO00  HRGOD  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSO0D  HKSOO0  HKSOWD
et i T TR TR TR TR T TR TE
(oie28(i)  (oe28()  (ote 28 i)
(o) Chstoe) (W)
At Janvary 2020 R0 418 12208 53908 16,075 2401 0819 3824 1030888 610 1076008
Prot for te e EREH - - - By 83 £ )
Ottercompehensive ncome for heyear.—— EREMAERE
Shateofobercomprefensieicomeotan  E-RREATE
5008 gl - - 1067 - 1067 - 1067
Shareofoffer comprehensiencomeofjort. - BASCEER
ventures 2EkE = = 30314 = 30314 - IR
Exchenge ifeences eted o forgn EREERN
operatons = - - 30,161 - 30,161 2812 973
Tota comprehensive income o e year EnREhgaE - - BAR BY6 M8 1068 16086
Appropriaion fostauoryresene A5ieRE m - - (659 6] 8 -
Final 2019 dhidend MIERERE 13 - - - (226 (122 - (12.206)
Inteim 2020 i NERERE 18 - - - e - o)
Dhicend declred tonon-contoling merests SR iER Zke - - - - - b B
At 31 December 2020 RE12RS1 1208 553908 16,864 0407 51683 3 1142088 987 119190
# The reserve funds include the share of reserves of an associate and # FEESBEREEGS BHBEATREE
joint ventures of HK$5,119,000 (2020: HK$5,008,000). B EEES5 119,000/ 7T (20204 -
5,008,000/ 7T) °
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * S S e BE 0 ) $T 4 A B TR RO SR O Y

HK$1,057,680,000 (2020: HK$1,020,020,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

4R A FE#1,057,680,0000E 7T (20204 -
1,020,020,0003# 7T) ©
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A
‘ Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER
‘ Year ended 31 December 2021
' HZE2021F12 A1 HILFE
h Notes
BiEE
L CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REFPHELE
ACTIVITIES ZBRERE
Profit before tax FRIERT R A
k Adjustments for: AT ZIEFE
Finance costs [EL RN 8
Bank interest income RITHEUA 7
Loan interest income BEHFBHA 7
Depreciation of property, plant and M - WE MR
equipment e 9
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 9
A Loss on disposal of items of property, BEEBWME  BEK&
plant and equipment RAEIE B EE 9
‘ Share of profits and losses of: FE(E & A B 1E -
Associate deol/NG
‘ Joint ventures BEhE
' Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL, (g
Decrease in accounts and bills receivables U R 7k K ZZ 4 >
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, AR - e REAM
deposits and other receivables FEW R IE R A
J &:=yii)) 29(a)(ii), (v)
Decrease in other payables, accruals and ~ E A FER FIE - fET
" contract liabilities ERAREHEERD  293a))
Cash generated from operations KEMSRE
Tax paid BATIE
r . Interest paid B 78 16(0)
Net cash flows from operating activities & & EE TSI &
mEERR

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET T
101,479 123,466
3,553 6,242
(3,846) (4,058)
(10,648) (9,790)
52,935 50,750
15,182 6,314
2,363 644
189 304
4,308 (12,585)
165,515 161,287
(500) 157
1,197 2,760
) 3,745

(370) (9,251)
165,835 158,698
(32,086) (29,813)
(401) (282)
133,348 128,603




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
MEEERER

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 31 HILFE

2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
bz FExT FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZFDELE
ACTIVITIES ZEERE
Purchases of items of property, plant and B E¥% - M=
equipment PETENE 29(a)(i), (i) (19,344) (16,955)
Proceeds from disposal of items of BEWHE - BEREKE
property, plant and equipment HE Z TS 5IE 200 90
Increase in loans to a joint venture Em—fHaEtE
R 2 &R (73,476) =
Interest received EFLE 29(a)(iii) 3,846 4,058
Dividends received from joint ventures BEEDERS - 4,443
Net cash flows used in investing activities & )EENFTRIE &
MR (88,774) (8,364)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMETHEL
ACTIVITIES ZEERE
Repayment of bank loans BEBITERK (72,500) (28,000)
Dividends paid EfNIRE (58,590) (34,177)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 37 f< F I35 ik i 25
ZIRE (8,050) (5,997)
Principal portion of lease payments HENFAEIHD 29(b) (14,347) (5,401)
Interest paid BERHE (2,402) (5,085)
Net cash flows used in financing activites @& & EFT ARG
mE R (155,889) (78,660)

Annual Report 2021 FERE @
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mEHERER
Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12 A1 HILFE

2

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH BRE&RBEL%EY

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ®hn, (R2) B8
Cash and cash equivalents at REVIZRE R
beginning of year fﬁfi\%{ﬁ%
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, [EREFHHFE » E5E
net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REXRzZEE
END OF YEAR REESEEY

XV 'N

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH B&RESZEY
‘ AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B
‘ Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTHE
' Time deposits with original maturity of less B EUS TR fE JHi
than three months when acquired PR=MEARZ
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the NG AIRERER
consolidated statement of cash flows ZBeRREEEY

) N
" A
.
A
y

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes

B aE

22

22

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
(111,315) 41,579
288,400 243,198
1,939 3,623
179,024 288,400
73,565 44,557
105,459 243,843
179,024 288,400




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited (the "Company") was
incorporated on 16 July 2010 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of
business in Hong Kong is Unit No.3, 18th Floor, Convention
Plaza, Office Tower, No.1 Harbour Road, Hong Kong. The
Group is principally engaged in terminal storage and the
handling of liquid petrochemicals.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 31
December 2021, the ultimate holding company of the
Company is Lirun Limited, which is a limited liability company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the "BVI").

Following the conditional voluntary general cash offer
becoming unconditional on 17 March 2022, the controlling
shareholder of the Company has been changed from Lirun
Limited to Great River Smarter Logistics (Hong Kong) Limited
on 24 March 2022. Great River Smarter Logistics (Hong
Kong) Limited is an indirect subsidiary of Guangdong Great
River Smarter Logistics Co., Ltd., a joint stock company
incorporated in the People's Republic of China ("PRC") with
limited liability and the shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Since then, the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Guangdong Great River Smarter
Logistics Co., Ltd.

e ISR AR M

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

ARREMER

EASEERERARA(TRRA])
RIEFASES A RVEN2010F7 A 16
BEMA L RE#REERAF - K
A A sE i 9 R FA Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands ° ZRA AR B £ 2L S S
R BEBBEEIRERESHAKN
B18I3E - AEET 2N ERE
b iR R BRI TS -

RAREERA * R2021F12 A31
B @ ANARIRKIER AR AR RS 4%
MRS ((EBERMRES ) MK
VZEBERBEERRINEERAR °

REGEER2ER e ELRN2022
FIA17TBRBEGHE - ARFHE
REAR R B 1202263 A24H B 1 EA
RARIEEARINIEEWREB)E
RAF - RINEEWR (BB BRA
ABERZIESEMRRMNDER AR
(—ERPEARKEFE ([FE])F
MR ZMRDBR AT @+ HRGHOR
FHBEZ B ™) NEEHBA
Al e Bt NARMBRLIERARE
BRE)NEENRRNDBRAF °
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRMEE

31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

A
A

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. RATAREEERE
Information about subsidiaries EEMEARZER
L Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31 ARATIN2021 512 A31 B 8= 26t
December 2021 are as follows: BARIFHENT :
k Place of Issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary/ of equity
registration registered attributable to
Name and business share capital the Company Principal activities
AN g2&#f ARAERRE
£ BEES L8/ ERRE [Pl TEXK
Direct Indirect
E# 13
Ocean Ahead Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$100 100 - Investment holding
‘ ABYARES, Bt 1007 BARR
‘ Edford Investments Limited BVI/Hong Kong US§1 - 100 Investment holding
KIREBRAT ABLRREE/BE 1% KRR
' Dragon Bussan International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary US$600,000 = 100 Investment holding and
EMMERRAT Bk Non-voting deferred** provision of services to
US$900,000 group companies
LiER600,000% T RABRRASEN DR
ERZRREL TRk
| 900,000% 7T
" Dragon Crown Petrochemicals Terminal HongKong  Oralinary US$26,600,000 - 100 Investment holding and
(Holdings) Limited Bk Non-voting deferred™ provision of services to
EAAEE(&E)BRAT US$500,000 group companies
L15126,600,000% T REAERRAEEARRE
’ . BREEEE" i
500,000% 7T

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continuead)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2021 are as follows: (continued)

Name

tR

Dragon Source Industrial Limited
EMIERAR

Nanjing Dragon Crown Liquid
Chemical Terminal Company
Limited ("NJDC')*

AREREl TREEE
ARAR(AREM])

QOcean Access Investments Limited

BRERARAR

Overseas Hong Kong Investment Limited

BIEERERRAA

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business
Rz
EMRER B

Hong Kong
&t

PRC/
Mainland China
HE/FE R

Hong Kong
&t

Hong Kong
&t

Issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital
2&f7

LR /iR

Ordinary HK$26,000,000
Non-voting deferred™
HK$2,000,000
L#0126,000,00057C
ERERRLT
2,000,000 7T

US$52,254,820
52,254,820 T

HKS$1
187

HK$10,000
10,0007

s

e ISR AR M

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

RNEAREBEHR (E
HFHENEARZERN (B

RN TIR2021FE12 A31 B H = [
BRARFBUT : (B

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
RARERE
ARl
Direct Indirect

E& L

Principal activities

TERE

= 100 Investment holding and
provision of services to
group companies

RARRRAEER AR
feis

= 90.01 Terminal storage and
handling of liquid chemicals

it

Investment holding and
provision of services to
group companies

RARRRAEER AR
feis

Investment holding and
provision of services to
group companies

RARRRAEER AR
feds

Annual Report 2021 FERE
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continuead)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

*

NJDC is registered as a Sino-foreign investment enterprise
under PRC law.

ok

The holders of non-voting deferred shares are not entitled to
any dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any
general meeting of the respective companies. On a winding-
up, the holders of the non-voting deferred shares are entitled,
out of the surplus assets of the respective companies, to a
return of the capital paid up on the non-voting deferred shares
held by them to one half of the balance after a total sum
of HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed in such
winding-up in respect of the ordinary shares of the respective
companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention.
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T

2.1

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRMEE

31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

RNEREBEFR ()

FHENEARZERN B

* MR IR IR BUEREM A
IMIEDE o

o BREREERNFE AEREE
Eﬂ%%i%ﬁﬁ% ARERAE
BASHREEMRREASGHNE £
RE o PFRE - BMREERITER
[ZESE=PANE ﬁ%%ﬁ@ AEHE
E - BREREMFERER
BEROBR 2B - REREE
Bl AR AR/ TR KA
100,000,000,000,000/8 TT.1& A EE Y
—ay—o

EERA ERFEMCEARBMEA
AIXE2HAFREEEELETEXBK
REBARIBHBEESTE - EFRA
Bt KPR A RSB RE &
FHBRITR °

RBERE

ZEVBREIDBBEBREGAE
(BRI AR]) B2 BB

HEE((FRHBHRELER]) (B
%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁ“#&ii&ﬁ‘l C BEER
R ([BEGER k2l &

/%QE%Q;#J@E'J&E/%@ GIRC 3 P
BREMRE - ZFHBERKRIIRE
SERABHIRE - BREEHEBAIN - Z
SEUMBWMERABTES] > MAESHE
HRABREREOTET -



2.1

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group") for the year ended 31 December
2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

2.1

e ISR AR M

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

R BB E (4F)

REMBRERBEEARRRENRBA
7l (% %mmﬁlj)b%%iizoz@m
ABBIEFE 2 B®mE - MEA
RN R E B AT ﬂﬁk\F(ﬁ
REBMEERE) - EAEEH2HER
BHREBN TR REAERR S E
BREFIAREEFE REIREHRAOEN
(AEEER TRARIAEER
BEHRABZENETREN) 2%
Z (o) R - BIERIS SRR o

HARBERIEERAEFERAZH
MR EHREZHALER - AIARE
ERFHEERDHREHRENRIE
IREEE—VHRTERER &
EEE

R EHRHEMRERB AN

(@ -y
SR HE

D‘%

b) HMEHWRBEFAELNER

X

© AKEMEK
1 o

EREBERE

B B8 X B B 5 Rk T B AR A R AR
RS MEARNEE - R 25K
RimH - WBAR 2 EEEAEE
BRI BETIAGE - BR%
SRR AT REAR S

Annual Report 2021 FERE



2

2.1

XV 'N

« 4

) N
" A
.
A
y

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i)
the fair value of any investment retained and (i) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRMEE

31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

R BB E (4F)

REEEE)

BakEMEERESZ SEAKRBYH
BRASEE N EIHAE A RIEERE
v AR E S ORI R IR AL
‘- MESERARIHMEERSE
& - e WA - XA RBEREE
KERRIZERXZBH@2HEEREY
ARG BR B RRREUR S o

\

i

i 5 B R 5 R BUR £ 3CFr it = TR
BERHET B ZEEE QXK

BesftERDREHREHR -
EBARGRAEEDRCZE (AWEKE

ZHIE) - RARKIIERRERS -

WAEBERE—BHEB AR ZZEH
- AEEUBRER)ZMNBARIZE
ERERE)REE  ()EAIFER
RS 7 EEE RN ERA AR 2
ETIE N ZRE  WHER()EWRENA

AE - (VEAERBERENAAER
(i FT A B A I AE B R eR B AL o

AR EMEARREE BRHASEE
BB IRTER - REAERE
ELEREEESBEMERNAR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, — Phase 2
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16  Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June
2021 (early adopted)

The adoption of the revised HKFRSs has had no significant
financial effect on these financial statements.

2.2

e ISR AR M

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

EBREDREE

REBRAEE 2 B #5 MR &R R
A T IERT BB 5 E2ER

BRI EZER %/%%%%&E
FEON - BAE B
FTXERIZE 395K
BN IwERE
RIET75% - &%

WigmE LR E
45 R BB SR
HAERZE 165715
]

EBUBHRELER  R2021F6H30

FA6IAER] H.2 £20197%
RmEm AR
T2 2R (12
AITERAR)

RNEIER] BB M 5 HEERL &L
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2021
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

L HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework’

Amendments to HKFRS Sale or Contribution of Assets
10 and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

‘ Amendments to Insurance Contracts?®

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

HKFRS 17

Amendment to Initial Application of HKFRS 17
HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 — Comparative
Information®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current? #

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
and HKFRS Practice Policies?

" Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates?

-

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction?

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended
Use’

Amendments to HKAS 37  Onerous Contracts - Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract’

Annual Improvements to  Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRSs 2018-2020 HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16,
and HKAS 41!

A
A
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

2 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

= As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong

Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October
2020 to align the corresponding wording with no change in
conclusion

& As a conseqguence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued
in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39
rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1
January 2023

© The HKICPA amends HKFRS 17 to permit a classification
overlay for financial assets presented in comparative periods
on initial application of HKFRS 17.

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a
reference to the previous Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference to
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
June 2018 without significantly changing its requirements.
The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or
a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of HKAS
37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity
applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets
do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 January 2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively
to business combinations for which the acquisition date is
on or after the date of first application, the Group will not be
affected by these amendments on the date of transition.
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2.3

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
resulting from a downstream transaction when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain
or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the
investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January
2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined
after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if
an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to
the entity complying with specified conditions, the entity has
a right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the
reporting period if it complies with those conditions at that
date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide
non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments
to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and earlier application is permitted.
Since the guidance provided in the amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for
these amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of the amendments on the Group’s
accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies. Accounting estimates are defined as monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that
period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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2.3

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related
to leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented, with any
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits or other component of equity as
appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments shall be
applied prospectively to transactions other than leases and
decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and
did not recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax
liability for temporary differences for transactions related to
leases. Upon initial application of these amendments, the
Group will recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred
tax liability for deductible and taxable temporary differences
associated with right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
and recognise the cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRMEE

31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any
such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only
to items of property, plant and equipment made available for
use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented
in the financial statements in which the entity first applies
the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the
cost of fulfiling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well
as contract management and supervision costs). General
and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract
and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to
the counterparty under the contract. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has
not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments shall be recognised as
an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application without restating the comparative information. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group
are as follows:

° HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that
an entity includes when assessing whether the terms
of a new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received between
the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial
liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the
entity first applies the amendment. The amendment
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact
on the Group's financial statements.

o HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
lllustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and
a substantive process that together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is,
after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

e ISR AR M

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

TESHEEBEE)

EBEOHRBHE(E)

P R i T e R A (AR SRR B
WiE R AR ERR - DEREE
HEBENIARARERAAENE M
AR BEBHAIIESEER - KO
SESNIARETSENTE - B
BAERENESAAR -

PIERRYIRR AT E - BB EZEENR
B - DRERIEIERE R RAEE A
FAEMEEE T REN D ELREE -
HRE AT IE AT BRI & E R PR R A A
WERE - MIRERAMIERNSEE
RETKEBEEEFENAAE - ReTH
BEEZEBNBRTHERARERE
Wzs o

RNETERE - BERKABEAR
FOREEERE - HBASFERE
AR - BESHFRENBRNERER
FREEA R RERER - RIS E AT
ETRE - AEER12A31BETT
BEZFRBERR - RETRER
A BmAKREEMEESRERS

EnRTZEEMREMER - BH%E
BattmBANBEEBRAZBRD
=R A A HELNHFRRET
BanASERERSESBMNE
TELBMAER -

Annual Report 2021 FERE



v
A N
Y

A
A
4

.
A
&

N
4

-

-
A
A

y

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continueq)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Investments in an associate and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in an associate and joint ventures (continued)

The Group's investments in an associate and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at the Group's share of net assets under the equity method
of accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are
made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies
that may exist. The Group's share of the post-acquisition
results and other comprehensive income of an associate
and joint ventures is included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associate or
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
investments in the associate or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of an
associate or joint ventures is included as part of the Group's
investments in an associate or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets),
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a
cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (e.g. a headquarters building)
is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise,
to the smallest group of cash generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is charged to the profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of
the impaired asset.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the profit
or loss in the period in which it arises.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continueqd)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings and structures 3.17% to 20%
Motor vehicles 19%

Office equipment 19%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents the infrastructure of a
terminal under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

(@ Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives
of the assets as follows:
Leasehold land 45 to 50 years
Buildings and structures 2 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include
the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate the
lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there
is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change
in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or
a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

The Group's lease liabilities are included in interest-
bearing bank borrowings and lease liabilities.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

(c) Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the profit or loss due to its
operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing
them. With the exception of accounts receivable that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Accounts receivable that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for "Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest ("SPPI") on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continueq)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a "pass-through" arrangement;
and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses ("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continuea)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within
the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
accounts receivable which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at
the reporting date (but that are not purchased
or originated credit-impaired) and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises
a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For accounts receivable that contain a significant financing
component, the Group chooses as its accounting policy
to adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with
policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include other payables and
accruals and interest-bearing bank borrowings and lease
liabilities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Inventories

Inventories represent consumables, tools and parts for use
in the operation, and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-
out basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, an associate and
joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, an
associate and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,
in each future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continuead)

Dividend income derived from the Company's subsidiaries, an
associate and joint ventures in Mainland China is subject to a
withholding tax under the prevailing tax rules and regulations
of the PRC.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or service.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continuead)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for
more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical expedient
in HKFRS 15.

Provision of terminal storage and handling services of liquid
chemicals

Revenue from the provision of terminal storage and handling
services of liquid chemicals is recognised (i) over the
scheduled period on a straight-line basis over contract terms
because the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group, or (i) over time, using an
input method, because the input method recognises revenue
based on the proportion of the throughput volume incurred
relative to the service rendered by the Group.

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group
estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be
entitled using the input method, based on the proportion
of the throughput volume incurred. The estimated amount
of variable consideration is included in the transaction price
only to the extent that it is highly probable that such an
inclusion will not result in a significant revenue reversal in
the future when the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continuead)

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders' right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract (i.e. transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits — pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF
Scheme") under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees' basic salaries and are charged
to the profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiary which operates
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
The subsidiary is required to contribute a certain percentage
of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company's functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the profit or
loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
associate and joint ventures are currencies other than the
Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in
the profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@ the party is a person or a close member of that
person's family and that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiy  is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRMEE

31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(o) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

U

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T

3.

TESHEEBEE)

BBAL(E)

b BHELTRERE:

maFa A T~ E

fa gt -

() ZERRAEEBR—=
BB A

i) ZEBAZ—EBNBY
DAARABLE (RKE
BHBAT  WEATNR
RRMBAR)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

ZERSBERENEE
ZET Bl s A RAEE
HEAREERNERK
’BE

HZEBR (AL
Bl RS

R@)O)PTHERIATEHZE
REEATENLBZE
B (ZEBHYRARDEE
EEABMEP—FZK
53

o

\
”

1 2 B 4]
ﬁ$%l&$%
ARRHEEE

=@ DY
?&#wq‘)lﬂi

m = m iR

> 3

\
%



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company's memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Income taxes

Significant management judgements on the future tax
treatment of certain transactions are required in determining
income tax provisions. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in
tax legislation.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRMEE

31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

BAREH R fhEt

AEEMBHRERNRREREEEF
HEFEMIBUA - FHX - BER
BENEH - MERBEMEKE - AR
RAEREOHE - At REBER - %
ERRMAEFTOTEEREAEEHR
FBEHRRZTZENEELRBNR
EEFHERHE -

# R

ERASENSTHER - R RE
BfEErEIN - BEEZ/EL T 55
BHMREERSHBAZSATENH
&

Frig#

BEEMSHEGE  ZREEEYHS
TRENBEBRBREFEHERH
i - AEEREFERZORGEZE
REMELREERE - BEIZHH
BB e T HER - Wt kAERA

st B R REE M

BEBENEERZENESHRERR
A THEEENEMEZRR(EE
B MEMBRERENEERBBENRE
BEHEREAEABNEANRLR) 7 0
To



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of investments in joint ventures

The Group determines that an indication of impairment
existed for the investments in joint ventures on the basis if
the joint venture was operating at a loss. Hence, the Group
performed an impairment assessment of its investment in this
joint venture. The Group engaged independent professionally
qualifying valuer to perform valuation on its recoverable
amount of the investment, which was the asset's fair value
less costs of disposal. The fair value was determined based
on the replacement cost model, which reflected the amount
that would be required currently to replace the service
capacity of an asset. In addition, the Group performed
future profitability analysis of this joint venture to assess its
potential economic obsolescence condition to ensure fairness
results from the replacement cost model. Such valuation
was based on certain assumptions, which were subject to
uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual results.
In making the estimation, information from current prices
in an active market for similar assets and liabilities were
considered and assumptions that were mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of the reporting period
were used. The future profitability analysis was complex and
required management to use significant judgements and
make assumptions which were affected by expected future
market or economic conditions. Based on management's
assessment, no impairment loss (2020: Nil) was recognised
in profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2021,
details of which are set out in note 19 to the financial
statements.

e ISR AR M

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

BAREHE R ()

et R REM (')
RE SRR ERE

REERENE ELENREFLR
BEFR  DENMUEELELELR
BB - Bt AEEHERZEED
ENREETRENG - AEBEHE
B BEEASERHEMEERENT
W el S FEITHE - MIRE /AU E
SHEABELAARBEREERAE - DA
BENREBEEEXNAEXETE - kBB
RIBREERISENIHTNSEE - It
N REBEZE S EEETRER
Mee Dot - FHEEEECEBRR R
Mo UBREEXNAENNR L
R ZEEDERETRE F MzE
BEGFETEEREZ A e EERAE
REERER - NEREER - Z&
BUBERBEBENERMSNEANE
BER > YRAEXEERRELRER
BHRERER o RERBFIE N DT
REMETEEREFELZEHAR
TG A BN R & #) & K AT R
& o RBBERERTE - REE2021
F12A31HIEFEWEA BT AER
BEEE (20204F : ) @ HFBEN
TS IRERMIEE19

Annual Report 2021 FERE @



4

e ISR AR

31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

A
N
4
a
A
A
y
A
N
4
A
L
a
y

A N
F
A
A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than investments in
Joint ventures)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-
of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal
is based on available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm's length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposal of the asset.
When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset
or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts receivable

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
accounts receivable. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type). The
provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix
to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continuead)

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts receivable
(continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer's actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group's accounts receivable is disclosed in
note 20 to the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

No separate analysis of segment information is presented by
the Group as over 90% of the Group's revenue, results and
assets are related to the business of terminal storage and
handling of liquid petrochemicals in Mainland China.

Revenue from a major customer with revenue in aggregate

amounting to 10% or more of the Group's revenue, is set out
below:

Customer A EFA
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRMEE

31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

6.

REVENUE

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

KBEFEHZWA

Revenue from contracts with customers

All the revenue from contracts with customers is derived from
Mainland China and recognised over time.

(i) Disaggregated revenue information from revenue
from contracts with customers

LON
WADHTEAT -
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THAT
255,896 238,148

PIERBEFAMNZIRABEERT
B A2t 20 P s S AR

) REEFEHNZBWADFRA

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Business activities EBEE

Terminal storage services IS SR RS 140,956 133,438
Handling services FRIR AR TS 114,940 104,710

Total revenue from contracts REREFEHZWMALEEE
with customers 255,896 238,148

Revenue recognised in the current reporting period that
was included in contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period is as follows:

Provision of the terminal storage and

handling services of liquid chemicals N BRI AR 7S

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

6. REVENUE (continued)

(ii)

Performance obligation

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due
within 30 days from the date of billing.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or

e ISR AR M

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

6. WAZE

(ii)

BEHEE

BHOEERRG R —BRE
BAZK  EFNREEBE
RAEERE R HRNB0RA -

W12A318 * DEREHTELD
BEECRERSE D REK) A

partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December are as follows: RSEHRSEEWNT
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT

Amounts expected to be EHRERBRAZSE
recognised as revenue:

Within one year —FR 3,978 5,011
After one year —F1& 20,472 23,667
24,450 28,678

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations which are expected
to be recognised as revenue after one year relate to
terminal storage services and handling services, of
which the performance obligations are expected to
be satisfied within seven years. All the other amounts
of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations are expected to be recognised
as revenue within one year. The amounts disclosed
above do not include variable consideration which is
constrained.
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e ISR AR

31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

7. OTHER INCOME

An analysis of other income is as follows:

Bank interest income
Gross rental income
Loan interest income from a joint venture

Government grants

Foreign exchange gains, net
Others

8. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank loans
Interest on lease liabilities

RITHEHA

i PN

KE—HEELEZ
BB A

BT RE

BEE 56 st - R

Hit

RITERHHE
o)

HEBEAFE

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T

Het WA
HARADITLAT -
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THAT
3,846 4,058
939 854
10,648 9,790
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6,265 12,628
2,607 2,460
24,305 30,959
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TR TAT
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Cost of services provided*
Depreciation of property, plant

BRI A A

and equipment*®
Depreciation of right-of-use assets*
Lease payments not included in the

EREEENE"
WEF AGTEHEREL

measurement of lease liabilities FHERRK

Auditor's remuneration ZE A &

Directors' remuneration EEScn

Staff costs (excluding directors' BIRA(CTEEES
remuneration)*: B )~ -

Gross rental income?*
Less: Outgoings

Loss on disposal of items of property,

Foreign exchange gains, net”

ok

Wages, salaries and other benefits
Pension scheme contributions™

plant and equipment

RIREETEIHR

ikl ON-EEY
X

B 2 518
[ 3 kas - SRR

Included in depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets above were amounts charged to cost of
services provided of HK$51,950,000 (2020: HK$49,681,000)
and HK$12,325,000 (2020: HK$3,543,000), respectively.
Included in staff costs above were amounts charged to cost of
services provided of HK$14,702,000 (2020: HK$11,244,000).

As at 31 December 2021 the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
pension schemes in future years (2020: Nil).

There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by
the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of
contributions.

Gross rental income and foreign exchange gains, net, are
included in “other income” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

TE - HekEMEF

REWF - BFEkEE

e ISR AR M

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

BRBE AT 3R R

BBADEF MG GEA)

Notes

B aE

15
16(a)

16(c)

10

ok

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
122,046 114,104
52,935 50,750
15,182 6,314
67 8,278
1,580 1,480
5,096 4,601
30,875 25,436
5,452 2,652
36,327 28,088
(939) (854)
a7 43
(892) (811)
2,363 644
(6,265) (12,628)

FFAEMYIE « BB R EREAKRE
PAEAENENSED B AR
PR 75 B 2N FR H1BR B I8 51,950,000
77T (20204 : 49,681,000/ 7T)
$ 12,325,000/ 7t (20204 :
3,543,000/ 7T) ° sF A Ll 8 TAK
RE) & AN RERSE KA R
HIFKTE14,702,0007% 7T (20204 :
11,244,000/ 7T) °

R2021F128318 » AEEWTERD
SR SR R R E EA] AR A H
RIREETEIE IR (20205 - &) -
WEEZWHR T AAREEEARE
FRUWRDBEBHIOKTE -

TH 2 WA SR8 I B 5 s - O ERET
ARG REmERP R [EAUAIR
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10.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors' remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Listing Rules"), section
383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRMEE

31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

10. EEEE

REBSHARIMBERAFRS L
MR EmRAL) - FERRED
£8383(1)(a) * (b) * (c) RMIEARAF]
(BEEEMNAER) ROIF2F R E

Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of MAFEEEMSUT
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as
follows:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT T
Fees: W
- Executive directors —HITES - =
— Independent non-executive directors — B IEHITES 720 720
Other emoluments of executive directors:  #hiTEEH i HEN
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMEBEYREF 4,340 3,845
Pension scheme contributions RIREBETEIHR 36 36
5,096 4,601
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration
e 2 Bife
re RENER SR 230 Pk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TaER TART TEL THL
2021
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Ng Wai Man REREE - - - -
Mr. Chong Yat Chin HBEELE - 2,240 18 2,258
Ms. Chan Wan Ming =Bt - 2,100 18 2,118
- 4,340 36 4,376
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e ISR AR M

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

10. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 10. EEME(E
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
Eo = RikE
e REMER AN e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TAL TAT FAT
2020
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Ng Wai Man RERLE - - - -
Mr. Chong Yat Chin HHELAE = 1,985 18 2,003
Ms. Chan Wan Ming ey - 1,860 18 1,878
- 3,845 36 3,881
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors of the FARARNARBIFNTEE N2
Company during the year were as follows: WS :
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen 2UBIRFEE 240 240
Mr. Feng Jianping RS AE 240 240
Mr. Hou Xiaoming ERER LA 240 240
720 720
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent FERREE B IERITES H b3
non-executive directors during the year (2020: Nil) B (20204 : &) o
No remuneration was paid or payable by the Group to the TR AEEWELFAE S ER K
directors of the Company as an inducement to join or upon RAIZESZNMNE - tEBINAREED
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during BERIEAMARERZNBERME

the year (2020: Nil).

(2020%F : &) -

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or RAFEERN BIEESHEXREN
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2020: Nil). EEAE T HE (2020F : ) ©
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11.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 11.

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2020: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 10 above. Details of the remuneration for the year
of the remaining three (2020: three) highest paid employees
who are not directors of the Company are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMEEYRT
Pension scheme contributions RIRSFT B

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 87T E
1,500,000/ 7T
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 8TE
2,000,000/ 7T

No remuneration was paid or payable by the Group to any of
the non-director highest paid employees as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office during the year (2020: Nil).
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2021412 A 31 H

LEBEFHHES

RAFEANRAER=FHES 2EM
% (2020%F : MB)ES - EHBIF
BEEHL EXMFE10 - 8T~ =% (2020
F:ZR)WEARFEENRSH
BilfE B M FRFBEFIEEIIAT ¢

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER THET
4,217 3,303

18 88

4,235 3,391

BN F T 5B E R IFEE &= 5
BEMEBLT

Number of employees

EEHRE
2021 2020
2 3
1 -
3 3

REBERAFEANIL ETAE R E
REMFESESHTHESOME -
EAMARNEBMN RS K IMALREE
ZHIBEBR T (2020%F + &) o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRME

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

INCOME TAX 12. Fri8%i
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Current — Hong Kong BNHA — &
Charge for the year REF T H 52 98
Overprovision in prior years BEFEHBERE (83) (48)
Current — Elsewhere BNER— E Atbth 75
Charge for the year REEF T H 26,438 26,590
Underprovision in prior years BEFERENR - 250
Deferred (note 25) IRIE (F73E25) 4,679 4,834
Total tax charge for the year REEBIAY N85 31,086 31,724
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% HEANEHIREBEFAETBESL
(2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising B 5 FE R B s A A9 16.5% (2020
in Hong Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of F:16.5%) MR IREBE - XS
the Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered E K —HEMBREIRR - Z AR AR
profits tax rates regime. The first HK$2,000,000 (2020: EMARGFNEHHE RGN ENELE -
HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of this subsidiary are % i /8 2 B & 2,000,000 7T (2020
taxed at 8.25% (2020: 8.25%) and the remaining assessable F : 2,000,000 7T) K & 2R T 0 £l
profits are taxed at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%). 1#8.25% (20204 : 8.25%) Ay Fit &
R HARRBUEFIRIIEZ16.5%
(2020%F : 16.5%) HIFE BB -
Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China have been 7R 2 B 48 2 BT 7E AR B P 3 A B RR A S
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in Mainland China FMEREBRITER - RBRIED - %

in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation, P E AR TR R AT ERIE o
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRMEE

31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

A~
12. INCOME TAX (continued) 12. FRSHL (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before BARRD R R EK B A R FTE R AR
tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which HOETE B R 5T H B @ AR AR A
L the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax RS SR AR E BRI R E
position at the Group's effective tax rate is as follows: HIARTAT B ERRA T
k Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
58 T B A it st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
w FTERx FEx FERT
2021
Profit/(loss) before tax BRECATE R (B518) (7,662) 109,141 101,479
‘ Tax at the applicable tax rates WERTEGFERTIE (1,276) 27,285 26,009
‘ Income not subject to tax HBERBIA (3,355) - (3,355)
Expense not deductible for tax AR 842 81 923
' Tax loss utilised EEATIEERE (38) - (38)
Tax loss not recognised RERTIIEEE 3,137 - 3,137
Adjustments in respect of current A FERANEATIE
tax of previous years 2R (83) - (83)
Effect of withholding tax on the ANER B R B A3 B
distributable profits of the Group's AR BEARR
J Mainland China subsidiary, BEPENDIK
" associate and joint ventures A TEE R E - 3,751 3,751
Profits and losses attributable to SEPER—FBEAR
joint ventures and an associate e N N B8 742 - 742
r . Tax charge for the year REEHIBRY (31) 31,117 31,086
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRME

31 December 2021

INCOME TAX (continued)

2020

Profit before tax

Tax at the applicable tax rates

Income not subject to tax

Expense not deductible for tax

Tax loss utilised

Tax loss not recognised

Adjustments in respect of current
tax of previous years

Effect of withholding tax on the
distributable profits of the Group's
Mainland China subsidiary,
associate and joint ventures

Profits and losses attributable to
joint ventures and an associate

Tax charge for the year

BRI A

BERB R EHBIE
BARBIA
AT AR S
EEABEER
AREERBIRER
BEFEEHHRIEA
L
AL B B AP S
DA BERE R
BELEANIK
MR BRI E
RERRK B
(s NI & B

AEEBIARX

The share of tax attributable to joint ventures of
HK$1,664,000 (2020: HK$3,573,000) is included in share
of profits and losses of joint ventures in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. No share of tax was attributable to

an associate in the current year (2020: Nil).

12. Fr8# (&)

202112 4381 H

2B
=
NG

Mainland

Hong Kong China Total
BB B At #Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
16,665 106,801 123,466
2,725 26,700 29,425
(4,311) - (4,311)
1,286 756 2,042
(56) = (56)
2,480 - 2,480
(48) 250 202

- 3,968 3,968

(2,026) - (2,026)
50 31,674 31,724

Eihae

1 EFIIBA1,664,0007 T
(20204 : 3,573,000/&7T) * Bt A
REBRRANELEELEZRT R
BiEF - AFEWEEL—BHBHEA
BIFIE (20204F : £#) o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

13. DIVIDENDS 13. KA
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Interim dividend — HK1.8 cents FREARS B — =R T @A

(2020: HK1.8 cents) per ordinary share 1.8l (20204 : 1.87&11l) 21,971 21,971

Proposed final dividend — Nil EEAIRE —ERE R
(2020: HK3.0 cents) per ordinary share = (20204 : 3.0l - 36,619
21,971 58,590

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Final dividend paid during the year represented the final
dividend of HK3.0 cents per ordinary share in respect of the
financial year ended 31 December 2020 (2020: final dividend
paid of HK1.0 cent per ordinary share in respect of the
financial year ended 31 December 2019).

Interim dividend paid during the year represented the interim
dividend of HK1.8 cents per ordinary share in respect of
the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: interim
dividend paid of HK1.8 cents per ordinary share in respect of
the financial year ended 31 December 2020).

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T
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F12H31 B I EFEERRERE
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REAR B EREAAR.08ML) -

FREIR AR S5 H FEl 22021
F12A31 B I EEERF B E
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRME

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 14. ARAEBEABLEERER

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on: BREARBMN 2 AEER :
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
Earnings Z3
Profit attributable to owners EIN/NETE 2PN 3
of the Company, used in the basic R F - ARETE
earnings per share calculation FREAREF 62,302 83,916
Number of shares
R&BEE
2021 2020
Shares 4v)
Number of ordinary shares of the Company 7ZNA &) 2 317 A%
in issue, used in the basic earnings AREL - ARETE
per share calculation BREARZR 1,220,628,000 1,220,628,000
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue REE2021F &2020F12A318 1k
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. FE AEFEVEBEEHSEERITYE

TR -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRMEE

31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

Cost:

At 1 January 2020
Additions

Transfers

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2020
and 1 January 2021

Additions

Transfers

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2021

At 1 January 2020

Provided for during the
year - note 9

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2020
and 1 January 2021

Provided for during the
year - note 9

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2021

Net carrying amount:

At 31 December 2021
At 31 December 2020

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

XA
12020F1A1H
NE
R
EE
Rk
12020F 128318

k20211 A1R
hE
2%
BE
R

2021512 A31H

Accumulated depreciation: ZzHTE

120201 A1H
FRBHE -

RE

AR

2020128318 &
2021%1A18

FREHE -

RE
[ AR
202145128318

REFE:
2021124318

2020124318

15. ¥% - MERRE

Construction  Buildings and Motor Office
in progress structures vehicles equipment Total
EEIE BTREEW RE BAZERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THT TAT TAT THx
1,082 944,340 4,571 1,356 951,349
13,682 5,480 - 122 19,184
(2,932) 2,932 - - -
- (2,478) (378) = (2,856)
665 59,138 261 76 60,140
12,397 1,009,412 4,454 1,554 1,027,817
12,751 6,283 380 266 19,680
(20,557) 20,557 - - -
- (7,558) - - (7,558)
266 34,058 154 48 34,526
4,857 1,062,752 4,988 1,868 1,074,465
- 471,828 4,078 1,259 477,165
- 50,538 167 45 50,750
= (1,763) (359) - (2,122
- 31,845 241 al 32,157
- 552,448 4,127 1,375 557,950
- 52,686 179 70 52,935
- (4,995) - - (4,995)
- 19,165 139 40 19,344
- 619,304 4,445 1,485 625,234
4,857 443,448 543 383 449,231
12,397 456,964 327 179 469,367
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

16. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings
and structures used in its operations. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the
owners with lease periods of 50 years, and no ongoing
payments will be made under the terms of these land leases.
Leases of buildings and structures generally have lease terms
between 0.5 and 3 years. Generally, the Group is restricted
from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the
Group.

(@) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets
and the movements during the year are as follows:

At 1 January 2020 720201 A1H

Additions NE
Depreciation charge FERX
Exchange realignment M AR

As at 31 December 2020

and 1 January 2021 20211 A1H
Additions NE
Depreciation charge FEMX
Exchange realignment [EE 0 Z 28

At 31 December 2021 R2021412H31H

e ISR AR M

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

MR20205F12A31H &

16. HE
REBEEREEA
AEEERNEEBEENET RE
EYZEBEMNHESL - ERAIE
B RN REFRERE L
- MEARS0F - MIBEZF LM
HAERER - BT EES TERRK
H BEFRBEYHHEHBABENT
0.5Z23F « — M5 * AEETAM
AEEUIIATEERS>HEESR
o
(@ EFAESE
AEBEFAFREEENERT
BEREFHINT :
Buildings
and Leasehold
structures land Total
BFR
EEY HELib st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FHT THET
4,484 32,824 37,308
15,111 - 15,111
(5,425) (889) (6,314)
696 1,975 2,671
14,866 33,910 48,776
11,807 - 11,807
(14,229) (953) (15,182)
420 1,104 1,524
12,864 34,061 46,925
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‘ Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
N ST EE:
‘ 31 December 2021
' 2021412 A 31 H
16. LEASES (continued) 16. HE#E
The Group as a lessee (continued) REBERAEBAE
L (b)  Lease liabilities b)) MHEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under FAMEBE (BT RRITE
k interest-bearing bank borrowings and lease liabilities) ERHEEBR)NEEERED)
and the movements during the year are as follows: T
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
A Carrying amount at 1 January M1 A1 15,002 4,593
New leases WHEE 11,807 15,111
‘ Accretion of interest recognised FAE R LILIE
during the year 401 282
‘ Payments (NEN (14,748) (5,683)
' Exchange realignment b 5 SR B 422 699
Carrying amount at 31 December K12 A31 BEREE 12,884 15,002
Analysed into: DT
Current portion RENER S 12,884 14,172
Non-current portion EMRENEL - 830
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in HE B Er S 29 T B % R
note 35 to the financial statements. KM FES5H R -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRME

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

16. LEASES (continued) 16. HE#E
The Group as a lessee (continued) REBERAEBAE
(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to ) RiEmTREIANEEHEBEIE
leases are as follows: O
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGEFE 401 282
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets (£ FREEENEEF 15,182 6,314
Expense relating to short-term leases B HHEEENHAX
(included in cost of service provided) Gr AREARBE AR A A) 67 8,278
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 1Bz FR R FIB A EE 15,650 14,874
(d)  The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note @ MEMIRSKREBENYER
29(c) to the financial statements. FMIEE29(c) e FR ©
The Group as a lessor AEEEAEBEA
The Group leases a certain portion of its office building NREBRBERKLHELHHARESS
under an operating lease arrangement. The terms of the BHETED - e —cESkAE
lease generally require the tenant to pay security deposits PYie  UNRIRETHIRE S
and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the TRFARBS c ERAEEHNDER
then prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised L WA B939,000/ IT (20204
by the Group during the year was HK$939,000 (2020: 854,000/87T)  FFIEE NI mK KT
HK$854,000), details of which are included in note 7 to the 7 o
financial statements.
At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments M2021FE12 A31H » REBP KK
receivable by the Group in future periods under non- HIERBEHEHERAE 7 N RS &
cancellable operating leases with its tenant are as follows: EHEICRAIRAAETF BT ¢
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THT
Within one year —FKN 312 907
After one year but within two years —F A FEMENARA - 302
312 1,209
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31 December 2021
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17. GOODWILL

Cost and net carrying amount at the
beginning and end of the year BREVHE

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is related
to the cash-generating unit of terminal storage and the
handling of liquid chemicals. Its recoverable amount has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-
year period approved by senior management. The discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 7.8% (2020: 7.8%)
and cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using an inflation rate of 5% (2020: 5%).

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
cash-generating unit of terminal storage and the handling of
liquid chemicals. The following describes each key assumption
on which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant units.

Inflation rate — The basis used to determine the value assigned
to cost of sales and the revenue price is the forecast price
indices during the budget year in the PRC.
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17. BE

2021 2020

HK$°000 HK$’000

TEx TAT

1,210 1,210
B R (E R

FREBEHEE B RREL
BONEEREREENESELEE
iz - Ha e BEERRARESRE
FERAFEZFREAEMEE @ MK
enERANIRASREREIE
CHEMBEEMAE - BEaRE
TERE A 2 TR E B7.8% (20204F -
7.8%)  MBBAFHEHNESRE
BIfE 5% (2020%F : 5%) Z iR K HE
A

AERCEABURRBICEmERGE
7 R EREHEREERE S| ARR -
UTHAEERBEBAERREMR
ALAETRERENAZSBEIER

i
%

FIRE— R RERBERTBA - A
REREFBARESELBUZHER

LA
a

o o
ZON

BRE-AREBESREBEEHENX
ARWABRHOEESEEFEES
B IERIERR ISR -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 18.
Share of net assets EIEEEFE
Particulars of the Group's associate as at 31 December 2021
are as follows:
Particulars Place of
of issued registration
Name shares held and business
BEERT A&
£8 RADF B ER
Tianjin Tianlong Registered PRC/
Liquid Chemicals capital of Mainland
Storage and US$1,950,000 China
Transportation Co., Ltd. * AR HE, AL
RERERECTHE 1,950,000 7T
BRAR
# Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group has

significant influence but not unilateral control over this entity.

Company.

The interest in the associate is indirectly held by the

e ISR AR M

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

R—BEBERTNRE

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$’000
TER TAT
18,398 17,983

R2021F12 A31 B AEE B &R
RIMEEIBAT ¢

Percentage of
equity interest

attributable to Principal

the Group activities
rEBERL

BREESL TEER

65 Terminal storage

and handling of
liquid chemicals

Rl 2m
TS EARATE KRR

# REBAHSERRAA  AEEHZE
BEEATE  BEE—f2fE -

RBERBZEBER AR B BER
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRMEE

31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

18.

19.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 18.

The following table illustrates the financial information of the
Group's associate:

FEDRIFAERE

Share of the associate's loss for the year  FE{GH

Share of the associate's other FE(REE R A E A
comprehensive income e

Share of the associate's total FEREE R A2 E
comprehensive income Wz 4858

Aggregate carrying value of the REEN—FHEE QA
Group's investment in an associate & 2 BRTEE

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19.

Share of net assets EIEEEFE

Goodwill on acquisition IWWEEEE ZEE

Loans to a joint venture m—EEELEREIER

Loans to a joint venture of RMB122,000,000 (approximately
HK$149,682,000) (2020: RMB122,000,000 (approximately
HK$144,887,000)), US$9,420,000 (approximately
HK$73,476,000) (2020: Nil) and RMB21,060,000
(approximately HK$25,838,000) (2020: RMB21,060,000
(approximately HK$25,011,000)) are unsecured, bear interest
at fixed rates of 6.0% per annum (2020: 6.0%), 6.0% per
annum (2020: Nil) and 6.4% per annum (2020: 6.4%),
respectively, and are repayable from 2026 to 2028 (2020:
from 2021 to 2023). In the opinion of the directors, these
loans are considered as part of the Group's net investments
in the joint venture and are not expected to be repayable in
the next twelve months from the end of the reporting period.
There was no recent history of default and past due amounts
for loans to a joint venture. As at 31 December 2021 and
2020, the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T

R—EBEQRNKRE (F

TRUAFEEHE ARG HE
#

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET THET
(189) (304)
598 1,057
409 753
18,398 17,983
REBLENRE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
342,317 340,830
14,837 14,361
357,154 355,191
248,996 169,898
606,150 525,089

m—AEa & ER122,000,000 A
R (49149,682,00058 7T) (20204
122,000,000 A ¥ (49144,887,000
B7T) ~ 9,420,000 7T (4973,476,000
7 7T) (20204 : &) K&21,060,000 A
R# (#25,838,0005 7T) (20204 :
21,060,000 A R #& (4925,011,0007%
TL)) M ERAEEW - 5 R IRE
6.0% (20204F : 6.0%) * AIRE6.0%
(2020%F : #&) RIEF6.4% (20207F :
6.4%) MEE BB - WH2026F =
20284 (20204 : 52021¢§2023¢)
HFNEE  EERAZEETHAK
EK%IEA/\%ﬁﬁﬁﬁxé{m**ﬁ
MBS TS ERERRENARR+ =
BARNEE I EHER—BAEE

TEEFNENCHERBHSHE - &
E2021F 2020512 A31H » Eia#
WA ARIE -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRME

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 19. REELENREE
Particulars of the Group's joint ventures are as follows: AEEEGEPENFBET
Percentage of
Particulars Place of CELS
of issued registration Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name shares held and business interest power sharing activities
BEERM
28 Riys ERREBEE ERERD REE  ELEA TEEH
Ningbo Ningxiang Liquid Chemicals Paid-up PRC/ 60 60 60  Terminal storage and
Terminal Co., Ltd.*(“NBNX’) capital of Mainland handling of liquid
EREMRFETARRART RMB7,350,000 China chemicals
([ERE]) BRRA e/ REEnEE
7,350,000 A K% R R A
Ningbo Xinxiang Liquid Chemical Paid-up PRC/ 60 60 60  Terminal storage and
Store Co., Ltd.*("NBXX") capital of Mainland handling of liquid
ERFAREIRRERAR RMB4,200,000 China chemicals
([ERR3A) BRRA e/ RENEnEE
4,200,000A R % RE R A
Weifang Sime Darby Liquid Terminal Paid-up PRC/ 50 50 50  Terminal storage and
Co., Ltd.* ("WSDL") capital of Mainland handling of liquid
ESRERR B R AR AR 270,000,000 China petrochemicals
(TwspLJ) BRRAR hE,/ BRALRER
270,000,000 AR HEAH REREE
The interests in the joint ventures are indirectly held by the RAGIEEREE S ENEL -
Company.
i Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group has joint G RIBAZEZME - NEEHEHA
control of these entities with other joint venture partners. BEDEBHHARIENZEEE -
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INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 19.

WSDL, which is considered a material joint venture of the
Group, is engaged in terminal storage and the handling of
liquid petrochemicals in Mainland China and is accounted for
using the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of WSDL adjusted for any differences
in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements:

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRMEE

31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

REELENRE(E)

WSDLAAXREE -BEZMNA 0
¥ EREAmtEREA(CRIEE
T MR » WA R AR

TREMWSDLHWM K ERBIZ (B3
SRR ZEMEZRELAR) - B
HIRER AP HREAARREE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&TT
Current assets (including cash and B E EE (824592,388,000

cash equivalents of HK$92,388,000 77T (20204F : 108,251,000

(2020: HK$108,251,000)) B ZRe LR EEY) 232,596 239,625
Non-current assets, excluding ERBEE - TRENE(BRE

goodwill (including construction 298,642,000/ 7T

in progress of HK$298,642,000 (20204 : 281,099,000/ L)

(2020: HK$281,099,000)) ZAERETE) 1,496,538 1,553,732
Current liabilities mENEE (573,279) (856,240)
Non-current liabilities FERBAE (525,272) (307,873)
Net assets BEFE 630,583 629,244
Recondiliation to the Group's interest in AEER—EEEREY

a joint venture: MR ETER
Proportion of the Group's ownership REBE 2 AR 50% 50%
Group's share of net assets of a joint AEEEE—HEELECE

venture, excluding goodwill ESE TeEnE 315,291 314,622
Goodwill on acquisition WHEEA 2 a8 14,837 14,361
Carrying amount of the investment ®EZREE 330,128 328,983
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19.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Revenue
Depreciation
Interest expenses

Income tax credit/(expense)
Income/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

YA
e
ESNEE3

FristiEe,/ (FRx%)

FREA (E1R)
FREMEEKE
FAEZER AR

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial

information of the Group's joint ventures that are not

individually material:

Share of joint ventures' profit for the year
Share of joint ventures' other
comprehensive income

Share of joint ventures' total
comprehensive income

Aggregate carrying amount
of the Group's investments

in joint ventures

19.

FEH B EBEFALEF

EIERZERE
HAth 2 T W e

IR ZERE

REERGERE
BB ZRREE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR M

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

REELENRE(E

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FET
150,737 168,661
(52,720) (49,196)
(53,546) (54,736)
393 (4,195)
(19,130) 15,114
20,469 36,481
1,339 51,595

TRIAREEERIATER 2 A&

ERZEHUABEER
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAT
5,257 5,028
808 1,390
6,065 6,418
27,026 26,208
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2021412 A 31 H

20. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRMEE

20. FEWERAREE
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y
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F
A
A

Accounts receivable JEYBE TR
Bills receivable R =%

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit period is generally 30 days,
extending to up to 60 days for major customers. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. The Group did not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancement over its accounts receivable
balance. Accounts receivable are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Current to 30 days BNERZE30K
31 to 60 days 31E60K
61 to 90 days 61£E90K
Over 90 days 90K F

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx TAT
31,419 26,859

- 4,734
31,419 31,593

BRETEP —RBTRLENRIN  AEH
MEFPAZZHERY - ERHE-—R
R30K - TREPHBGRER A RIE
RE60K - AREERZEHHE KB
EREER - s MERESEREX
MBHEIRE R o 785 E 3 4 iy LR WA X
‘R ATAER R EMER 2R
Tt o FRUBRRIL BT S, o

RBEHR - RIFBEE R HAMEEH
FEW AR KR DATEA T

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TR
30,642 25,816
732 9

45 =

- 1,034

31,419 26,859




20.

21.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
customer type). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. Generally, accounts receivable
are written off if past due for more than one year and are not
subject to enforcement activity. As at 31 December 2021
and 2020, the Group estimated that the expected loss rate
of accounts receivable was minimal and no ECL allowance in
respect of these balances was made.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Prepayments ENEN

Deposits and other receivables

Portion classified as current assets (note)

Portion classified as non-current assets (note)

Note:

As at 31 December 2021, included in deposits and other receivables
were receivables from WSDL, NBNX and NBXX, joint ventures
of the Company, of HK$47,339,000 (2020: HK$37,067,000),
HK$3,858,000 (2020: Nil) and HK$1,145,000 (2020: Nil) respectively,
which were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The
Group has no intention to demand WSDL to repay its receivable
as at 31 December 2021 within twelve months from the end of
the reporting period. Accordingly, the receivable from WSDL was
classified as a non-current asset as at 31 December 2021.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to deposits
and receivables for which there was no recent history of default and
past due amounts. The carrying amounts of these deposits and other
receivables approximate to their fair values. As at 31 December 2021
and 2020, the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

E REMEYGIA

20.

21.

DEAREEENED (M)
NERIERBEENED (HFD)

e ISR AR M

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

FEW AR R R 4B (4

REWRE A BRABREEEETRE
oM UEFERBEEBE - B4
EHENREABRUBERRANZ @
BEFE D BAR (izEFRE D) !
BMRBETE - At BRI
BR - BERRERNEEHHAEH
BRABESRIR - B ANIRM RORKEHE
TR AR A EEF - —RM
5 MEKERRaREE—F - BT
D - BEAZAITIHERR - R
20214 2020512 H31H - R&EEH
fhET U AR R IB IR IR R T 258
VBN AR EEREHEREES
B -

BN BEREMBYWRE

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
TRET TET
4,026 3,250
52,644 37,993
56,670 41,243
(9,331) (40,907)
47,339 336

B -

R2021F12831H » BiEERERE
HEKRRBEBAESNREERRB ZE &
TEWSDL - EREHRERHNAH
47,339,000 7T (20204F : 37,067,000
#IT) ~ 3,858,000/ 7T (20204 : ) &
1,145,000/ 7T (20204F : &) H) fE Y X
B ZEFEAERF  RERARE
KR - N2021F12831H @ REEE
ERREHARE+ @A RERWSDLE
EHEYGIE - Bt - R2021F12 A31
B EUWWSDLMZIBE DB AIERSE
E °

7

FlESBRPREN S RVE EHERII EE
R RaPecBENES REWRREBES
B o SR e REMERFENRAE SR
HERARERE - R20214F %2020%F12A4
318 - BEBEHTEARE -
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22, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances He RIRTTHER

Time deposits with original maturity REEBHALR=(EAZ
of less than three months TEHATE X

Cash and cash equivalents on the RERE MR TR
consolidated statement of ReRREEEY

financial position

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
amounted to HK$141,594,000 (2020: HK$245,547,000). The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T

BERAEEEY
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx TET
73,565 44,557
105,459 243,843
179,024 288,400

RBREBHR UWARE(TAR
BDHENAREER & RIBITH
#:4£141,594,000/8 7T (20204 :
245,547,000 7T) - ARBTEEE H
HBMEEME - A - RIBEPEA
B N B B {4 R A B - B R A
EEERTE  ASBEEESBERE
EITINEXEFIRTT - HARKE LR
PRELMD S o

RITRSEE AR TERFL T
SERBDALE - S HRE KRN
F—RI=EATE  BIAEEL
EIERS BRI - I AIAREE T
FE M RRFIR B8 « SRITHEBTE
MO 40T - BB RITPHIE
7



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

23. OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

Other payables HAb BT FRIA

Accruals FEETER

Contract liabilities in relation BREERAR
to deferred revenue BRERE

Less: Current portion

Non-current portion

Notes:

(@)

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average
term of one month.

The contract liabilities represented the aggregate amount of
the transaction price allocated to the performance obligations
that are unsatisfied as of the end of the reporting period. The
Group expects that the transaction prices allocated to the
unsatisfied performance obligations will be recognised as
revenue when the Group provides services to the customers.

As at 31 December 2021, the contract liabilities of
HK$24,450,000 (31 December 2020: HK$28,678,000;
1 January 2020: HK$31,111,000) included deferred revenue
arising from the terminal storage and the handling services
of liquid chemicals. The decrease in contract liabilities in
2021 and 2020 was mainly due to the decrease in deferred
revenue arising from the terminal storage and handling
services of liquid chemicals. Included in the non-current
portion of HK$20,472,000 (2020: HK$23,667,000) were
contract liabilities in relation to deferred revenue expected to
be recognised in more than one year related to provision of
terminal storage services.

23.

e ISR AR M

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

HttEARE  BRtERARENE

&

Notes

PEE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
8,689 4,305
11,327 10,540
24,450 28,678
44,466 43,523
(23,994) (19,856)
20,472 23,667

H At IR/ BB FI9ER
HR1ER -

BHRBEBERERRIEER
TRENRENRZEREE - K
SEFEMDEEER KB R ER
RS ERBRAEE R TP RAIR
TR RERR AU ©

M2021F12A31H * AHNAEEAE
24,450,000/ 7T (20204 12 A 31
A : 28,678,000/ 7T : 202041 A
1H : 31,111,000 70) 15 &K E L
BOMBERTREEREEEZ
WA ° 2021F K2020F A48
EROEFZEHARREBLERAEE
ot 77 T BT B AR 745 B A R RE U AR
Do ST AERBIE 5 #Y20,472,000
77T (20204F : 23,667,000/ L) &
ERARBISEETREEHRZR —
FRERHECRANEHEME -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

4
A

24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS AND 24, FERITEEREEEE
LEASE LIABILITIES
2021 2020
Effective interest rate Maturity HK$°000 HK$'000
BRH= 31588 TR THL
k Current RE S
Lease liabilities (note 16(0))  4.35% - 4.75% 2022 (2020: 2021) 12,884 14,172
(2020: 3.73% - 4.75%)
HEEE(FE16(0) 4.35% - 4.75% 2022 (20204F : 20214F)
(20204 : 3.73% - 4.75%)
A Bank loan - unsecured Hong Kong Interbank 2022 (2020: 2021) 99,625 49,250
Offer Rate ("HIBOR"),
‘ plus 1.4%
RITEH— BHKH BERTRERSNE 20226 (20204 : 20214F)
‘ ([BARTRAEFEFE])
' +1.4%
Bank loan - unsecured HIBOR, plus 1.9% Nil (2020: 2021) - 22,500
RITER - BEKA BARTRIZEREFIEL.9% 4 (2020F : 20217F)
Total current BREHs 112,509 85,922
‘ Non-current Eiik i)
" Lease liabilities (note 16(0))  Nil (2020: 4.75%) Nil (2020: 2022) - 830
HEBE(3E16(0) 4 (2020%F : 4.75%) (2020 : 2022F)
r Bank loan - unsecured HIBOR, plus 1.4% Nil (2020: 2022) - 99,625
RITER — B BERBOTREREFE 4% (20205 : 2022%)
Total non-current HIEREE D - 100,455
‘ Total @it 112,500 186,377

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRME

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS AND 24. SFHERITEEREESEBEE
LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THL
Analysed into: AT -
Bank loans repayable: FITEFREE -
Within one year 1ER 99,625 71,750
In the second year Epkis - 99,625
99,625 171,375
Lease liabilities repayable: HERBESR
Within one year 1ER 12,884 14,172
In the second year FoF - 830
12,884 15,002
112,509 186,377
Note: Bz -
As at 31 December 2021, except for the lease liabilities of M2021F12A318 r hAEEAE
HK$12,884,000 (2020: HK$13,061,000) which are denominated in 12,884,000/ 7T (20204 : 13,061,000/%
Renminbi, all borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. o) MARKEFHESN - FRBEBEH ST

BHE -
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31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

25. DEFERRED TAX

the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

w At 1 January 2020

Exchange realignment

Exchange realignment

" At 31 December 2021

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during

Deferred tax charged to the profit
or loss during the year (note 12)

‘ Withholding tax paid on repatriation of earnings from

a subsidiary and joint ventures

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021

Deferred tax charged to the profit
or loss during the year (note 12)

Withholding tax paid on repatriation of earnings from
a subsidiary and joint ventures

25. EELEHIEA

T~

EERBARE

7202041 518

B NIBEMRAELEHIA (E12)

H—FENBARIRAEEE
B 2 71/ 3% A O TR
BEE 5 82

2020512 H31H 202141 41H

B NIBREMRAELEHIA (E12)

H—FEMBARRAERE
B 2 71/ S A B0 TR
EE 5 2

72021412531 H

RAFRELCHAREREEZE N

Withholding
taxes

AMB
HK$'000
TET

3,394

3,968

(2,924)
177

4,615

3,751

(3,884)
145

4,627



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRME

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

25. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 25. EEFIEE
Deferred tax assets EEHREEE
Timing
difference
on revenue
recognition
of taxable
profit
PERBLSFIM
PN -3
REZE
HK$'000
T
At 1 January 2020 20204F1A1H 7,251
Deferred tax charged to the profit FTAFABEMELERE (T:F12)
or loss during the year (note 12) (866)
Exchange realignment B 5, S 399
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 2020512 A31H k202141 A1H 6,784
Deferred tax charged to the profit STAF N B ARETIE (FEE12)
or loss during the year (note 12) (928)
Exchange realignment b 3 g 207
At 31 December 2021 M2021F12H31H 6,063
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% RIBPEPEMEHE - MRBERM
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign B RIINE R EHIRIMNEE B EIRK
investors from foreign investment enterprises established in B EBK10%M BT - ZHE
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January H2008F1 A1 HRBER » WEAR
2008 and applies to earmnings generated after 31 December 2007F12A31B 2 BEEMNAF -
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there fisi R B ) 4 BRI HNE B 2 TR R A R
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction B EHEESRDZE - AIIERE
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate TR EHT - AEEm S - BA
is 5%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on MER/S% - At - AEBAEFNH
dividends distributed by the subsidiary, associate and joint B A KM B AR - BE AR R
ventures established in Mainland China in respect of earnings EEPEFRN2008F1 A1BRRFTEE
generated from 1 January 2008. PR B A BN TEFIRL ©
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRMEE

31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

25.

26.

27.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$1,525,352 (2020: HK$1,754,658) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
some time and it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised: EIE -
4,000,000,000 ordinary shares

of HK$0.10 each

Issued and fully paid: ERITRHRE :
1,220,628,000 ordinary shares

of HK$0.10 each

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 23 May 2011 (the
"Share Option Scheme") to provide incentives to eligible
participants (including employees, executives or officers,
directors including non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors, advisers, consultants, suppliers,
customers and agents of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries) for their contribution to the long term growth of
the Group and to enable the Company to attract and retain
high calibre employees. During the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020, no share options were granted, exercised or
cancelled by the Company under the Share Option Scheme.
There were no outstanding share options under the Share
Option Scheme as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). The
Share Option Scheme had expired on 22 May 2021.

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T

25.

26.

4,000,000,000/% A% &
0108tz LBk

1,220,628,000 & & AR E &
01082 Ei@h%

27.

EERIE (&

AEBREAEENREEIE
1,525,352 7T (20204F : 1,754,658
D) ¢ AJERHAMIKEEEERZ A
A BIRFERTORT o BRREFIRIET
HEEMNBARCBIE—BRIEHE - A
Th R A TR ] e & EE A FE AR B 1A
HIETRIEEIE - B ES SRR R
FERIEEE -

AR ANRAS T E AR 2 R S B AR (E fe]
FrigBiia R -

V&S
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEr TAT
400,000 400,000
122,063 122,063
L lve gl

REER201145 523 HER AL HE
FrEl ([FERRERTE]) - BEEREEE
wemE (BIEAR R SREEMANEB
RAElZEE - TTHRABRN=ABE
EE(PREIERITESRBILIERT
BE)  BERE-#ERE - #HER T
PRRE)  BHEHAEE KL
RIEL 2 BB+ (RIEEARRQRRA &%
Bt cEE - REZE2021F &
2020F12A31HLEFEA + &"NAF]
BER SRR SR~ 1T
SHIENCHE o M2021F12A31H » B
RSB BT ERETFEZER
R (2020%F : &) - BRETEERN
202145 A22 B fE °



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

28. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements
therein for the current and prior year are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

() Capital reserve

The capital reserve mainly represents the difference
between the consideration and the book value of the
share of the net assets acquired in respect of the
acquisition of non-controlling interests.

(i) Reserve funds

In accordance with the relevant regulations applicable
in the PRC, the Group's subsidiary established in the
PRC is required to transfer a certain percentage of
its statutory annual profit after tax (after offsetting any
prior year's losses), if any, to the reserve funds until
the balance of the funds reaches 50% of its respective
registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions
as set out in the relevant PRC regulations, the
statutory surplus fund may be used to offset against
accumulated losses of the PRC subsidiary. The amount
of the transfer is subject to the approval of the board of
directors of the PRC subsidiary.

(iii) Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of operations in the PRC which are
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in note 3.

e ISR AR M

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

28. f#fE

758 B 0 AN S R 5 G 0 AR
BB E2IINGAMEEDE -

i) EXREE

BAREEREABUEIEE
Pergas MR E R A PTUREEE
EFHEREEFNERE -

(i) @REES

RETEEAMNBRESR - K
SEN P BEZEH B R RIA
BETBESHERERDIE (K
HEMEFBHERR) ZAEFE
wH (B EFEES  BEE
ESEHRENSAEMEARN
50% - BT HBERBEIERAM
HOETRST  AERBRE
& 7] AR 55 o BT & R A
2REER - BRSBEAKTHE
MBARESSHRAE -

(iii) EXREREE
fE R REFEREREREE
B R R E LA INE

ZE - WIREMES AEMES
HREEIE
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e ISR AR

31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions

U)

(i)

(iv)

In the prior year, the Group recorded other
payables and accruals of HK$28,000 in relation to
additions of property, plant and equipment. The
additions had no cash flow impact on the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
HK$336,000 (2020: HK$2,227,000) in relation to
the purchase of property, plant and equipment
was transferred from prepayments to property,
plant and equipment.

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
loan interest income of HK$10,648,000 (2020:
HK$9,790,000) from a joint venture was settled
through current account with a joint venture.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of HK$11,807,000
(2020: HK$15,111,000) and HK$11,807,000
(2020: HK$15,111,000), respectively, in
respect of lease arrangements for buildings and
structures.

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
dividend receivables of HK$5,003,000 from joint
ventures were settled through current account
with the joint ventures.

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T

20. GEBSHRERMNE

(a)

FEERERS

0

)

V)

EF - AEESBHBA
EME - BEREENE
ftEM RIBREGE R
28,0008 7T ° ZAEH A
EE/EHE2020F12 A31
HIEFERATERSTE

=748
4=

HZE2021F12 A31 B IEF
- BEHEEEME  BE
& B R 3RIE336,000/8 7T
(20204 : 2,227,000/ 7T)
THEBAYE - BE KR
2B -

HZE2021F12H318 1k
FE - RE—HAEELE
#910,648,000/% 7T (2020
£ 19,790,000/ T) B
FMBWABEB—HEEDR
EME RS -

HE20215F12 A31 B L5
B REFREEMHEE
ZHME - AEBEFEAE
BERBEAENIERS
NE D B A11,807,000/8
7C (20204 : 15,111,000
#7t) &11,807,00078 7T
(20204F : 15,111,000
JT) °

HZE2021F12A31H 1k
FE - REURKREEEDLE
HIP% 25,003,000/ 7T J5iE
BEE D FEMTRERN
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 29.
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities

At 1 January 2020

Changes from financing cash flows

New leases

Interest expenses

Interest paid classified as
operating cash flows

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2020 and
1 January 2021

Changes from financing cash flows

New leases

Interest expenses

Interest paid classified as
operating cash flows

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2021

720201 A1H

BMEHSREE
MHEE

MERZ
DEREEREREN
BRAFE

ME H

72020128318 &
20211 A1H

BMERSREE

wHE

FERZ

DEREEREMEN
BIFE

M 5 2

202112831 H

e ISR AR M

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

RERERERMEE

(b) BEFBRELNRERD

Interest-

bearing

Lease bank
liabilities borrowing
HEAE TEBTEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FAT
4,593 198,500
(5,401) (33,085)
15,111 -
282 5,960
(282) -

699 -
15,002 171,375
(14,347) (74,902)
11,807 -
401 3,152
(401) -

422 -
12,884 99,625
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRMEE

31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 20, HGEBESHRERMEE
CASH FLOWS (continueq)

I (c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEFRSRHEEE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the HREEREXRTHERER
statement of cash flows is as follows: HARZEINT

2021 2020

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Within operating activities REEETEEN 468 8,560
Within financing activities REVETEEIN 14,347 5,401

14,815 13,961

' 30. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL 30. HMEEARFERER 2B EEMH
‘ NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS B

Details of the Group's subsidiary that has material non- AN ER5E B A EA IR A s
controlling interests are set out below: REEME QRS -

NJDC EREEA

2021 2020
" Percentage of equity interest held by AR R P R R R
non-controlling interests in NJDC IR#EE » 9.99% 9.99%

-

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAT

Profit for the year allocated to FRNHIE T IR R
non-controlling interests iy 8,001 7,826

Dividends paid to non-controlling ST TR AFEERR
interests of NJDC 2 IRE 8,051 5,997

Accumulated balances of non-controling  FEIERRREZS AR E HAK
interests at the end of the 2 BiERES
reporting period 51,651 49,837

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T
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eI HRME

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

30. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL 30. BEERFERERZHIEBH

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) BAT (&)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial T ZRER R b B N B A B 1S A LR
information of the above subsidiary. The amounts disclosed Z o FIRBECBEIAETAARRE
are before any inter-company eliminations: 8 -
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Revenue WA 255,896 238,148
Other income HAbgg A 4,082 4,459
Total expenses RS (178,203) (163,512)
Profit for the year F N 81,775 79,095
Total comprehensive income for the year ~— FRE UGS 4258 98,849 107,203
Current assets MENEE 84,971 69,444
Non-current assets ERBNEE 511,144 532,797
Current liabilities mEAE (38,562) (58,955)
Non-current liabilities IEMBEN AR (20,473) (24,497)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEBFBRERE T 148,291 135,844
Net cash flows used in investing activities ~ & /EBFTABE S R2 558 (18,598) (16,400)
Net cash flows used in financing activites ~ BEE/EBFTAE & REF5E (118,375) (116,048)
Net increase in cash and Re RN EBYILINFEE
cash equivalents 11,318 3,396
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRMEE

31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

31.

COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital expenditure
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

Contracted, but not provided for:

Buildings and structures BT REEY)
In addition, the Group's share of a joint venture's own capital
commitments, which are not included in the above, is as
follows:

Contracted, but not provided for:

BT RIREY)

Buildings and structures

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T
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31.

iR

RBEERR - NEBB T EARFZ
HRIE

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$’000
TEx TAT
4,871 4,225

SRS - B XA ARG Rz AEB RN —
MeERERE 2 EAESME - &N
T~

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THAT
287,479 278,270




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRME

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. BEBALRS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (@) FRZEMBERFZE AT FTEF

these financial statements, the Group had the following
material transactions with related parties during the

MER Z N

AEERFRE

HEBMALTETUTEAR

year: Z
2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BT FTER FAT
Terminal service expenses: ESEARISHY
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park MRtETERNA
Public Services Company Ltd. EXERAEEAA ) 6,485 5,183
Rental and auxiliary expenses: HERMERX :
Nanjing Jiangbei New Area AR REREE
Construction Investment SEERAR
Group Co., Ltd. ("NJCI") (asig=2:4) (i 12,573 11,736
Dragon Crown Investments B IERER AR
Limited ("DC Investments") (BEA L TRIRR D) (i) 1,980 1,980
Interest income: FEHA -
WSDL WSDL (iv) 10,648 9,790
Notes: PR aE

(i) Terminal service expenses were charged in accordance
with the terms mutually agreed between the Group
and the related company which was a non-controlling
shareholder of NJDC.

(ii) The Group, as the lessee, entered into several lease
agreements with NJCI, which is a non-controlling
shareholder of NJDC, for the use of pipe racks. As at
31 December 2021, the Group recognised the lease
liabilities of HK$12,026,000 (2020: HK$11,277,000) in
respect thereof.

() WEERBRZOBEAEER
E1 R B N B 4B B 155 5E B IR AR
XAt - BB AR AR REE
A FEFEARAR R o

iy AEEEAREALEERRH
ME IER R AR BT AL I Bt
FAERITUETHER
& o M2021F12A31H
AEBERLERBEAE
12,026,000/ 7T (20204 :
11,277,000/ 7T) °
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e ISR AR

31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continuead)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

Notes: (continuea)

(i

(iv)

The Group, as the lessee, entered into a three-year
office lease agreement ending on 31 December 2021
with DC Investments at a monthly rental of HK$165,000.
DC Investments is a company in which Mr. Ng Wai Man
and Mr. Chong Yat Chin, directors of the Company,
have 98% and 2% interests, respectively. As at 31
December 2021, the Group recognised a lease liability
of nil (2020: HK$1,941,000).

The shareholder's loans of RMB122,000,000
(2020: RMB122,000,000), RMB21,060,000 (2020:
RMB21,060,000) and US$9,420,000 (2020: Nil) to
WSDL bear interest at 6.0% (2020: 6.0%), 6.4% (2020:
6.4%) and 6.0% (2020: Nil) per annum, respectively,
and are unsecured and repayable in five years.

The related party transactions disclosed above

constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Details of the outstanding balances with related
parties are included in notes 19 and 21 to the financial

statements.

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T

32. BEMALRE (E

(a)

(b)

(&

it

(i)

(iv)

(&)

AEBERATEAEEDL
TEIFEAE A7 £ A&165,000
BITEI A = 2021412 531
it BHEZHAZTHER
o ML IEBARAF
EEREBREAERHFEAEL
ERE R D BIHEFI8% 2%
T Z AR ° 2021612 A
31H - AEERRHEEAE
BZ (20204 : 1,941,000
JT) °

MWSDLIZ # & Ik R B 3%
122,000,000 A R# (2020
£ : 122,000,000 A RH#E) -
21,060,000 A R# (2020
4 : 21,060,000 A R¥) K
9,420,000 7t (20204 :
D)BHEER  HRlEE
6.0% (2020 : 6.0%) ~ 6.4%
(2020 : 6.4%) 5%6.0% (2020
F TR - ZEREER
BEER WEARAFRE

=
/B °

EXFBEENRBALIRSE
BX ETRRIE14ATFTFE RS

BREBBALHRBEL K
EHR IS RARMFEI19K21 -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRME

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 32. BBMALIRE (E
(c) Compensation of key management personnel of (c) AEEMNETEEEASFHH
the Group
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Short term employee benefits REEE R 8,417 7,132
Post-employment benefits BB AT 72 72
Total compensation paid to key BENEEEE
management personnel ABRF AR 8,489 7,204
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in EEMe cE—HFBEHRHY
note 10 to the financial statements. TERFMIFE10 ©
33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 33. RERZI/IMNERMTE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RIWERR SRR TANKREE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as T -
follows:
Financial assets SRIEE

Financial assets at
amortised cost

REBHEATTRNEMEE

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FBT FAT

Accounts and bills receivables G YN ES 31,419 31,593

Loans to a joint venture m—EEEPERENER 248,996 169,898
Financial assets included in prepayments, st AFERTER ~ #2& K HAh

deposits and other receivables (note 21) EWHIEN S REE

(Mf5E21) 52,644 37,993

Cash and cash equivalents Be MREEEY 179,024 288,400

512,083 527,884
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33.

34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 33.

(continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities included in other ST AE M FIE
payables, accruals and contract liabilities ~ EEFER MR A AR
(note 23) # <& B 8 & (f17E23)

Interest-bearing bank borrowings TEIRITEE
and lease liabilities rHEEAE

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, accounts and bills receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, interest-bearing bank borrowings and financial
liabilities included in other payables, accruals and contract
liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of non-current other receivables and interest-
bearing bank borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities, and were assessed to approximate to their
carrying amounts.

The Group's finance department is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The finance
department reports directly to the directors. At each reporting
date, the finance department analyses the movements in
the values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the directors.

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRMEE

31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

BERESNEMTRE

TEAE

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

BBERRSIRN SR &
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THET
13,989 13,196
112,509 186,377
126,498 199,573

ERTRAZARBERAIAEER

EEECHHRAENRASEFEY &
WEER M RE - FEATRNFOR - &2
REMBURFENTBREE « 7 2R
TRENEG ARMENFR - Bt
ERREHMAENEREBEZAR
HHEFEEEMRS  TEARZFIA
AR -

FEMB A AL EUGRIA KT BRTTEE
ZRRETHEBRBERLUER - =
SR EHTIHHANTAZBERR
AMEBBERARKRASREFH -
WS SR EBRE (AR

AEEMBHAREEEMTALR
EFFECHREREF - WIFRERER
ESHRE - REWEEH - MBED

RATEMZEEHABUE - (HEIA
E=RERIE -



34.

35.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities
are included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash
and cash equivalents and interest-bearing bank borrowings.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to finance
the Group's operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as accounts and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, lease liabilities and other
payables and accruals, which mainly arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's net debt
obligations with floating interest rates. The majority of the
bank borrowings bear interest at rates with reference to
HIBOR. The Group mitigates the risk by monitoring closely
the movements in interest rates and reviewing its banking
facilities and borrowings regularly. The Group has not used
any interest rate swap to hedge its exposure to interest rate
risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in the HIBOR, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax
(through the impact on floating rate bank borrowings).

34.

35.

e ISR AR M

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

EMIAZAREBERAAEER
(&

TREENEMABBZANENER
X577 CRAzBRNERIN EE A
RHPARGZTASHEALR -

MHEREERRERBER

AEENETZSHIARERS KB
TEHEEYMULFBRITEE - %52
RTATZANAIEEZKEER
e ARBHRAEMZHeREE
RAE  PIMEZERNEEELD
EUSRA R RE - Be REMREYR
B~ HEA BN REMENTIAELE
AHEM -

AEESRTAMSRNEZRRS
MNERRE  FERRMERBDESEA
% EER WA HEER L FAR
MR - R EERRAEENT -

FIE R

AEEHRHNTSMNEEBERTE
HEAREELUE BN RE BHFEB R
EEM - RO RITEENSTD2R
FRRITRAXFENEFTE - KEE
FEBE Y RN R N HImET R
TREMEEERERR - AEEL
RED R AT R B 1 2R [ g

TRETEEMAZERZAZIFNR
T BERITAZFENERAEA
HEHAKBRR B ADG M (BB
FERITEENTE) HHRE
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Credt risk

The Group primarily provides services to recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's policy that
advance payments are generally required for new customers.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not
significant. Since the Group primarily provides services to
recognised and creditworthy third parties, there is normally
no requirement for collateral. As at 31 December 2021, there
was a concentration of credit risk as approximately 96.0%
(2020: 89.8%) of the Group's accounts receivable were due
from one debtor.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-
end staging classification as at 31 December. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 35.
POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk (continueq)
31 December 2021 2021412 A31H
HIBOR BHERITRAEFEN X
31 December 2020 2020%F12A31H
HIBOR BRRITERF LR =R

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRMEE

31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

BHEAREEEERBEKE)

Tl 7 iz (&
Change in
profit
Change in before tax
basis points BRB Al
B2y AR E
HK$’000
FHET
50 765
50 1,745

1EEER

AEBFEMERTREERTNE
= RERE  c AEBEBERAEHNE
P—MESZTERR o 1o - B
BREMOZIFEEN - AEEMNE
RRBITEKN - BERAEEEER
BRAREERTNE = FRHER
?& .lﬂ:_ﬂ %—rﬁﬁﬁuu © :
202112831 H * AR AEEER
BR 5K B £996.0% (20204 : 89.8%)
xa—m BN MIFEEREER

R o

B2 R B R

TREFIM12A31 BIREBAKER(E
ERRE DN EEERLRRREER
b DEEERBHER FRIFERE
Hip ERHERAB N B ERNKARSEE )
RERBEBRIE 2RSSR
BEIRERE -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRME

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 35. BIXREREEEEREEKE

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) 1=E&fE (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) AR R FALEER ()
As at 31 December 2021 72021612831 H
12-month
ECLs
TZEARHS Lifetime ECLs
EEFR HEHEERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-RE ETRE EZRE fEth% @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx Thn Thx TEL ThR
Accounts receivable* [EUBRTR - - - 31,419 31,419
Loanstoajontventue  M—AAELERENET
- Normal** R 248,996 - - - 248,996
Financial assets includedin 5t ATEfTFUE -
prepayments, deposits 1&e REMERGE
and other receivables MemAE
- Normal™ —EF~ 52,644 - - - 52,644
Cash and cash equivalents B2 RS SEN
- Not yet past due —HARH 179,024 - - - 179,024
480,664 - - 31,419 512,083
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRMEE

31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 35. MBEMEEBERBEKGE
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) 1EEEE (&
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) RE R R FALEER ()
As at 31 December 2020 72020612831 H
12-month
ECLs
TZ{EARS Lifetime ECLs
FEBR FERNEESR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FIR& FRE i Blerk a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TEL THL TEL TH
Accounts receivable* R - - - 26,859 26,859
Bills receivable EUZE
- Normal™* —EF 4734 - = - 4734
Loanstoajointventue  [F—FIAERERENET
- Normal™ —EE 169,898 - - - 169,898
Financial assets included in 5t ATEAIZA -
prepayments, deposits e REMEYGHE
and other receivables MEREE
- Normal*™ Sl 37,993 - - - 37,993
Cash and cash equivalents B2 REE5EN
—Not yet past due — AR 288,400 - - - 288,400
501,025 - - 26,859 527,884

statements.

ok

and the financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables is considered to be "normal" when they
are not past due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial

assets is considered to be "doubtful".

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T

For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the
simplified approach for impairment, information based on
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 20 to the financial

The credit quality of loans to a joint venture, bills receivable

ok

SN S B ER A R L 77 VA R R (B HO
FEMERRIN S - BRBURERES
BB R B 7k MY RE 201 B o

BR-RAAEEEREHNER &
WRE R ARNR - B2 REAM
R FEN SR EET EaHAw
BEEHNBETEREERD & RERN
RzEERBBEBE LT - £
EEHEZHBARIER] - TRISRE
ENEEERRERIARE] -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR M

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 35. UKEMEEBERBEK(E
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) 1=/ (&
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) REARR R FAREE ()
Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure EEASEREREZRMEE ZEE
to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are disclosed in B 2 i —F 2 L BB RIS HREM
note 20 to the financial statement. FF20HER ©
Liquidity risk B EZ/EE
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds by AEBREREEECHEBEREMEE
considering the maturity of both its financial liabilities and (5120 FE UL BR B LA KR TEET 48 & 575 3R
financial assets (for example, accounts receivable) and EMERNEAAREREE SRR
projected cash flows from operations. [2BR2 ©
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between AEEMEEAERERAANTES R
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of ROTER  EESRHBEEBEE Y
internal funding and bank loans to meet its working capital MEEFE UneHEEEESS
requirements. Ko
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at AEBRFERAREN G LRIIRN
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual FHEREBENRHBEROT
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
As at 31 December 2021 72021612831 H
Less than 3to 1to5
3 months 12 months years Total
3EAZE
DH3EA 1218 A 1Z56 @et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THERT FTHET THET
Lease liabilities HEEE 3,341 9,847 - 13,188
Interest-bearing STRRIIEE
bank borrowings 197 100,176 - 100,373
Other payables, accruals  EfbERTZIE - fE=t
and contract liabilities ERMAENEE 13,989 - - 13,989
17,527 110,023 - 127,550

Annual Report 2021 FERE @
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
eI HRMEE

31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2020

BHEREERBRRER(E

REE AR (&

7A2020F12H31H

Less than 3to 1t05
3 months 12 months years Total
3EAZE
LH3(E A 1218 A 1855 faEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FAT FAT TAT
Lease liabilities HEEE 3,642 10,926 848 15,416
Interest-bearing SHESRTEE
bank borrowings 512 73,743 100,198 174,453
Other payables, accruals ~ E A& FIE «
and contract liabilities EERRANERE 13,196 - - 13,196
17,350 84,669 101,046 203,065
Capital management BAREH

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders' value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020.

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T

AEBEEAERNTZARA/RER
SEBRNFELEED  LHRR
fREEARLE - M EERER
NBERREMIRITREE -

AREB TR EARB I RBEER
SR B K AR B A ) R B e R L
AFE - RERSABREARE K
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36.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which

is calculated as the net debt divided by equity attributable

to owners of the Company. Net debt includes interest-

bearing bank borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents.

The gearing ratios as at the end of the respective reporting

periods were as follows:

Interest-bearing bank borrowings (note 24)  #HEIRTTEE (i524)

Less: Cash and cash equivalents o ReRIREEEY

Net cash B8

Equity attributable to owners KRR AEEERE
of the Company

Gearing ratio BERBHLE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 9 March 2022, the Company published the composite
offer and response document in connection with the
voluntary conditional general cash offer from Great River
Smarter Logistics (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Offeror”) to
acquire all of the issued shares of the Company (the “Offer”)
in the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. The Offer was opened
from 9 March 2022 and closed on 6 April 2022. The Offeror
announced that the Offer has become unconditional in all
respects on 17 March 2022.

35.

36.

e ISR AR M

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

BBEREERBRRER(E

BEXEHE (&

AEBERPAEERBLRERER
BERBHXRTNRABEFERNNAR
AEA AEIGERE - AEFEE
EETEBRITIEE - MRS MREEHE
e REMERR - BERBHL R

T
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FA&T
99,625 171,375
(179,024) (288,400)
(79,399) (117,025)
1,179,743 1,142,083
N/A N/A
TEA ANiE
HmEBREEH

2022398 - AREFIEEH
TN EEYR (B8 BRAE ([Z4
ADREEGRHEEBEZABESEZLMN
WA R RNE BB R T2 E %
TR ([Z8]) WEREe ZH R EIEX
- BLE B2022F3 BB S © I
ER2022F4A6HE I - EHAE
i BHR2022F3A17THES A E
B ARG -

Annual Report 2021 FERE @



4

A
N
4
a
A
A
y
A
N
4
A
L
a
y

A N
F
A
A

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

31 December 2021
2021412 A 31 H

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37.

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Net assets

EQUITY
Share capital — note 26
Reserves (note)

Total equity

ESNCIEUR S W

ARARRERRHBEARRNKRZE

BEGAT
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
FRBEE
RETB AR E 739,115 778,773
RBEE
AR BE K
Hith e zkIE 480 619
HeERBEEEY 29,654 137,964
MEEERE 30,134 138,583
RBas
E b S FOE K FERT B A 2,185 1,663
STREIRITIEE 99,625 71,750
mE) B EAE 101,810 73,413
REBEE(BE) FE (71,676) 65,170
BEERRBER
667,439 843,943
FRBEE
FTEIRTTEE - 99,625
BERE 667,439 744,318
R
A& — K526 122,063 122,063
& (BRE) 545,376 622,255
MR 4R RE 667,439 744,318

@ Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&ERZERER A T



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

38.

COMPANY (continueq)

Note:

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:

At 1 January 2020

Total comprehensive income for the year
Final 2019 dividend

Interim 2020 dividend

At 31 December 2020 and
1 January 2021
Total comprehensive loss for the year
Final 2020 dividend
Interim 2021 dividend

At 31 December 2021

202051 A1H
FAZHE KA
20195 REIR B
20205 HAfR 2

720205128318
K202161 818
FANEABIERE
2020F REAR 8
20215 EAR B

M2021412H31H

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2022.

e ISR AR M

31 December 2021
202112 H31 H

37. ARRDABMBARREK (Z

B 5T
RRRIEEHENT
Share Retained

premium profits Total
BRAD IR 1E REB R F et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
553,908 17,488 571,396
- 85,036 85,036
- (12,206) (12,206)
- (21,971) (21,971)
553,908 68,347 622,255
- (18,289) (18,289)
- (36,619) (36,619)
- (21,971) (21,971)
553,908 (8,532) 545,376

38. HEBIEHREK

EEEDR2022F3 A30 B #t &N IE
T BB TSR K o
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Five Year Financial Summary

EFEMBHBRE

REVENUE WA
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREE A=A
Tax TIA

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  FR#F

Attributable to: LA AL FEMS -
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZ =N
Non-controlling interests IR

ASSETS BE

Non-current assets IEmENEE

Current assets MENEE

Total assets BERE

LIABILITIES =V

Current liabilities nEBE

Non-current liabilities ERBAG

Total liabilities BfERSE

Net assets BEFE

Total equity T AARE

This summary does not form a part of the audited financial

statements.

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT THET FHT THT FHT
255,896 238,148 229,849 262,491 241,464
101,479 123,466 72,355 112,397 87,106
(31,086) (81,724) (26,900) (36,247) (29,299)
70,393 91,742 45,455 76,150 57,807
62,302 83,916 38,787 66,930 50,276
8,091 7,826 6,668 9,220 7,531
70,393 91,742 45,455 76,150 57,807
At 31 December
M12831H

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET THT FAT T FHT
1,175,316 1,070,045 1,026,430 1,064,828 1,215,702
223,563 364,075 313,501 276,620 190,343
1,398,879 1,434,120 1,339,931 1,341,448 1,406,045
142,386 113,463 85,627 52,519 84,522
25,099 128,737 178,296 185,021 182,099
167,485 242,200 263,923 237,540 266,621
1,231,394 1,191,920 1,076,008 1,103,908 1,139,424
1,231,394 1,191,920 1,076,008 1,103,908 1,139,424
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIN Haichuan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

(Appointed on 6 April 2022)
Mr. HUANG Yuntao (Appointed on 6 April 2022)
Mr. LI Xiaoli (Appointed on 6 April 2022)

Mr. NG Wai Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

(Resigned on 6 April 2022)
Mr. CHONG Yat Chin (Resigned on 6 April 2022)
Ms. CHAN Wan Ming (Resigned on 6 April 2022)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Mr. FENG Jianping
Mr. HOU Xiaoming

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairman)
Mr. FENG Jianping

Mr. HOU Xiaoming

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairman)

Mr. FENG Jianping

Mr. HOU Xiaoming

Mr. LIN Haichuan (Appointed on 6 April 2022)
Mr. NG Wai Man (Resigned on 6 April 2022)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (Chairman)

Mr. FENG Jianping

Mr. HOU Xiaoming

Mr. LIN Haichuan (Appointed on 6 April 2022)
Mr. NG Wai Man (Resigned on 6 April 2022)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. LIN Haichuan (Appointed on 6 April 2022)
Mr. LI Xiaoli (Appointed on 6 April 2022)

Mr. CHONG Yat Chin (Resigned on 6 April 2022)
Ms. CHAN Wan Ming (Resigned on 6 April 2022)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Corporate Information
NEIEH

HITES

W Sk (FEFTBARE)
(R2022F 4 56 HEZA(T)

BREE A (R2022F4 H6 HIEZ(T)

IS (R20224F4 H6 H EZ L)

REREE (LEFTHAER)
(R202294 H6 A &T)

R B (R2022F4 56 HEFHT)

FRENE 2+ (R2022%F4 56 HBHT)

BYFHITES
B8Rz E
AL L

BREES
BIHRELE (£/E)
L
REEREL

FHEES

RIHRELE (/)

REERA S &

MO LA (R2022F4 H6 HHEZ(T)
RER%A (Ro022F4 56 HEHT)

REEES
BIHRELE (£/E)
L
REEREL

MG 5 (R20224E4 H6 A EZ(T)
REREA (R2022F4 56 HEHE)

RERR

MBI FE A (Ro0224F4 H6 HEZ(T)
TINA A (R2022F4 H6 HIEZ(F)
HBEEBLLE (R2022F4H6HEHT)
FREB L+ (KR2022%4 56 HEFT)

REWE

PR R4 A (R2022F3 H30 HEZE(F)
$EFRAA L+ (R2022F3 H30H 8 1F)

Mr. WOO Yiu Chung (Appointed on 30 March 2022)
Ms. CHUNG Sau Ming (Resigned on 30 March 2022)

Annual Report 2021 FERE
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Corporate Information
NEIEHR

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit No. 3, 18th Floor

Convention Plaza, Office Tower

No. 1 Harbour Road

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC
No. 101, Hao-Jia-Ba, Xinli Village

County of Yudai

Nanjing Chemical Industry Park

Liuhe District, Nanjing City

Jiangsu Province, the PRC

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

COMPANY WEBSITE
www.dragoncrown.com

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited #EF&EREZERER QT
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Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

BEEROBFETIE

FEEFBLERA
BB
SRAER183H
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Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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Www.dragoncrown.oom
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